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MERRILL LYNCH INTERNATIONAL BANK LIMITED
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The directors have pleasure m submitting their report along with the audited tinancial statements of Meml|
Lynch International Bank Limited ("MLIB'). the ‘Company’, and together with 1t subsidianies, the
*Group’, for the year ended 28 December 2007

Memll Lynch Capital Markets Bank Limited ( MLCMB™) was formed 1in 1995 In 2006, the worldwide
businesses of MLIB, a United Kingdom based bank. were acquired by MLCMB  On completion of the
acquisition of the businesses, MLCMB changed 1ts name 1o MLIB The Group 1s wcorporated i Ireland
and 1s regulated by the Financial Regulator

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

‘The Group 18 the primary non-U S banking entity for Mernil Lynch  The Group has 1ts head office in
Iretand wath branch offices 1n Amsterdam, Bahran, Frankfurt, London, Madnd, Milan and Singapore

The Group acts as a principal for debt derivative and foreign exchange transactions and engages in
advisory, lending. loan trading and institutional sales activity The Group also provides collaterahsed
(including mortgage) lending, letters of credit, guaranices and foreign exchange services to, and accepts
deposits from, its clhients  The Group provides mortgage lending, admmmstration and servicing in the UK
non-conforming residential mortgage markets

Mernll Lynch Bank (Suisse) S A, a subsidiary of MLIB, 1s a Swiss licensed bank that provides a tull array
of banking, asset management and brokerage products and services to imternational chents, including
secunties trading and custody, secured loans and overdrafts, deposits, toreign exchange trading and
portfolio management services

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the year on ordinary activities after taxation was US$751,016,000 (2006
USS$549,389,000) as set out tn the consolhidated Income Statement The directors have recommended that
no dividends be declared (2006 Nil)

BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT

Global financial markets expenenced significant stress duning 2007, pnmanly dnven by challenging
conditions n the credit markets This adverse market environment began to intenstfy at the beginning of
the third quarter and was charactensed by signtficant credit spread widening, prolonged 1lhquidrty, reduced
price transparency and increased volatithity In response to these conditions, the European Central Bank,
the Federal Reserve and the Bank of England 1injected significant lrquidity into the markets duning the
second halt of the year Long-term interest rates, as measured by the 10-year U § Treasury bond, ended
the year at 4 03%, down from 4 71% at the end of 2006 Mayor European and US equity indices
increased moderately duning 2007, oil prices hit a record high and the Euro reached record levels against
the US Dotlar  Overall the global economy continued to grow dunng 2007, albeit slower than in 2006

While the Group results may vary based on global economic and market trends, the directors beheve that
the outlook for growth 1n most of the Group’s businesses remaimns favourable due to positive underlying
fundamentals and the resihency of these markets However, the challenging conditions 1n certain credit
marhkets have continued nto early 2008  Since year-end, these markets have shown renewed signs of
volatility and weakness as evidenced by increased expectations of future rating agency actions and
increased default and delinquency rates
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MERRILL LYNCH INTERNATIONAL BANK LIMITED
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

OUTLOOK

These conditions are expected to continue throughout 2008, driven largely by sigmficant weakness 1n the
European and US credit markets, which are expected to persist in the near term with conttnued asset
repricmg and valuation pressures across multiple asset classes  This continued weakness may negatively
impact the valuation of the Group’s net exposures to non-conforming related assets and other residential
and commercial real estate related loans and securities  Additonally, negative economic conditions have
begun to adversely impact other consumer lending assct classes  Specifically, the Group ended 2007 wath
sizcable exposures to UK residential real estate assets, European commercial real estate and asset backed
toans and European leveraged finance loans  The Group has no exposure to US non-conforming related
assets or U S collaterahised debt obligations markets

Conditions 1n both the leveraged finance and commercial real estate markets, which began to deteriorate in
the middle of 2007, have continued to experience significant spread widening and price declines since the
beginning of 2008  Future market conditions will likely remain challenged due to increased volatility,
uncertain economic conditions and reduced demand from some market participants  The Group continues
to focus on reducing 1ts aggregate exposures, momtoring the underlying fundamentals of these positions
and exercising prudent underwnting discipline with respect to any new financing comnutments

Overall, with these challenging credit conditions and declines 1n most global equity indices 1 2008,
volatility in the financial marhets remains ligh and capital markets uncertainty has increased While these
factors may negatively 1mpact investment banking activity in the near term, the Group's rates and
currencies businesses 1s expected to benefit from increased client trading activity and proprietary trading
opportumties  In addition, despite this near term uncertainty, client interest in various strategic and
financial transactions remains active globally and investment banking pipelines continue to be at healthy
levels  For the long term, the directors continue to be optimistic about the outlook for the Group's
businesses (Given the Group’s regional and product diversification, the directors expect continued growth
of the global capital markets and ongoing wealth creation around the world to provide a favourable
environment for the Group’s businesses over the long term

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

In the course of conducting the Group's business operations, 1t 18 exposed to a variety of nisks that are
inherent to the financial services industry The most significant risks that the Group faces relate to market
risk, credut risk, hiquidity risk and operational nsk A more detailed note about these nisks and how the
Group manages them 1s included 1n Note 28 to the financial statements

BOOKS OF ACCOUNT

To comply with the requtrement that proper books and accounting records are hept n accordance with
Section 202 of the Compames Act, 1990 the directors have ensured that appropriately qualified accounting
personnel have been employed and that appropnate computensed accounting systems are mamntained The
books of account are located at the Group's regstered office




MERRILL LYNCH INTERNATIONAL BANK LIMITED
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS AND SECRETARY

The directors who served dunng the year were as follows

Robert Wigley - Chairman

Michael G Ryan - Managing Director
Nasser Azam

Allen G Braithwaite [11

Andrew Briski

Gavin Caldwell

Eva Castillo

Kevin Cox

Michael J D’Souza

David Gu

Chns Hayward

Eng Huat Kong

Robert G Murphy

Liam OQ’Relly Appointed 8 March 2007

Paddy Teahon

Mernli Lynch Corporate Services Limited continues to be company secretary having been appointed on the
12 May 2005
DIRECTORS’ AND SECRETARY'S INTERESTS IN SHARES

The directors and the company secretary had no beneficial interest in the shares of the Company or 1ts
subsidianies at any time during the year The following table lists directors who held office at 28
December 2007 and had shares, options and other nghts to shares in Mernll Lynch companies

Merrill Lynch & Co., Inc, $1.33 Common Stock

28 December 2007 29 December 2006

Options & Options &

Shares Other rights Shares Other rights

Robert Wigley 191,347 131,067 143,198 169,467
Michael G Ryan 6,473 4,658 6,473 4,658
Nasser Azam 38,924 340 - 61,294
Allen G Braithwaite 111 25,054 29,875 24,709 29,875
Andrew Briski 15,037 28,301 11,316 28,792
Eva Castillo 72,888 13,749 - 136,340
Kevin Cox * 91,969 136,114 100,136 166,338
Michael J D’Souza 26,041 29,631 6,851 43,370
David Gu 280,978 25,953 2,435 404,025
Chns Hayward 71,786 35,608 36,887 35,608
Eng Huat Kong 18,403 17,473 14,024 17,473
Robert G Murphy 7,792 - 7,792 -

*In addition holds 6,000 Mernill Lynch Preferred Shares of $1 00 (2006 6,000)




MERRILL LYNCH INTERNATIONAL BANK LIMIATED
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board of Directors (“the Board') is responsible for approving the corporate strategy for the Group,
monttoring and reviewing performance and providing oversight of major imtiatnves for the Group  The
Board mects at lcast quarterly, to review the Group's business  In the course of conducting its business
operations, the Group 1s exposed to a vanety of risks including market, credit, hgquidity, operational and
other msks that are matenal and require comprehensive controls and ongoing oversight  To ensure that
risks are properly identified, measured. monttored and managed, the Group has established a governance
and risk management process to ensure that 1ts risk-taking 1s consistent with 1ts business strategy, capital
structure and current and anticipated market conditions  The Board formally reviews s corporate
governance on an annual basis to ensure that 1t meets industry best practice

The Board has delegated day-to-day control and management of the Group's activities to management and
various Board approved management committees  The Managing Director and other members of the
management team report at least quarterly to the vanous commuttees The charters and composition of the
various commuittees are reviewed annually and approved by the Board

These commuttees perform an important oversight function for the Group

The Risk Policy and Oversight Comrttee (the ‘Risk Commuttee’) 1s chaired by Mr Robert G Murphy and
its membership includes five additional directors  The Risk Commuttee 1s responsible for reviewing the
Group’s nisk-taking activiies and ensuring that such activities are prudently managed and within
acceptable nsk tolerance levels The Credit Committee, the Asset and Liability Commttee, the New
Product Commuttee and the Operational Risk Committee report to the Risk Commuttee on a quarterly basis
These commiitees are responsible for ensuning that the Group’s market, credit, hgudity and operational
risks (among others) are properly 1dentified, monitored and controlled

The Audit Commuttee 1s chaired by Mr Robert G Murphy and 1ts membership includes four non-executive
directors The Audit Commuttee momitors and reports to the Board on all audit and comphance matters
affecting the Group The Comphiance Commuittee reports to the Audit Committee on all matters of a
compliance, legal or regulatory nature affecting the Group

CHARITABLE AND POLITICAL CONTRIBUTIONS

The total sum donated duning the year by the Group to chantable organisations was US$226,803 (2006
US$201,667) The Group provides matched funding of certain contributions made by employees under a
Give As You Eam scheme and donations made by employees to certain specified chanties  There were no
pohtical donations made duning the year (2006 Nil)




MERRILL LYNCH INTERNATIONAL BANK LIMITED
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

ENVIRONMENT

The facilitation ot a clean environment and effective environmental protection 1s a fundamental aspect off
good business operattons  The Group recognises that 1ts business activities have an 1mpact on the
environment, both globally and locally  Therefore 1t 1s the Group’s pohicy to mimmise any adverse impact
of 1ts operations on the environment

AUDITORS

The auditors, Delonte & Touche, Chartered Accountants, have indicated thewr willingness to continue n
office m accordance with Section 160(2) of the Companies Act 1963

Signed on behalf of the Board

DIRECTORS

--.

MC

13 March 2008
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MERRILL LYNCH INTERNATIONAL BAMNK LIMITED
STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES

sk Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for cach financial year which give
a true and fair view of the state of atfairs of the Company and the Group and of the profit or loss of the
Group for that penod  In prepaning those financial statements, the directors are required to

* sclect suntabte accounting poticies for the Company and the Group and then apply them consistently,

e make judgements and esimates that are reasonable and prudent, and
* prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless 1t 1s nappropriate to presume that
the Company and Group will continue 1n business

The directors are responsible for heeping proper books of account which disclose with reasonable accuracy
at any time the financial position of the Company and the Group and to enable them to ensure that the
financial statements are prepared 1n accordance with accounting standards generally accepted in Ireland and
comply with Irish statute compnising the Compames Acts, 1963 1o 2006 and the European Communities
(Credit Institutions  Accounts) Regulations, 1992 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of

the Company and the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection ot fraud
and other wrregulanues




INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF MERRILL LYNCH INTERNATIONAL BANK LIMITED

We have audited the financial statements of Mernil Lynch International Bank Limited for the year ended 28
December 2007 which comprise the Consolidated Income Statement, the Consohdated Statement of Total
Recognised Gans and Losses, the Group Balance Sheet, the Company Balance Sheet, the Statement of
Accounting Policies and the related Notes 1 to 37  These financial statements have becn prepared under
the accounting policies set out in the Statement of Accounting Policies

This report 1s made solely to the Group’s members, as a body, 1n accordance with Section 193 of the
Compantes Act 1990  Qur audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Group's members
those matters we are required to state to them in an auditors’ report and tor no other purpose To the tullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Group and the
Group’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS

The directors are responsible for preparing the financial statements, as set out n the Statement of Directors’
Responsibilities, 1n accordance with applicable law and accounting standards issued by the Accounting
Standards Board and published by the Institute of Chartered Accountants in Ireland (Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice 1n Ireland)

Our responsibility, as independent auditors, 1s to audit the financial statements 1 accordance with relevant
legal and regulatory requirements and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland)

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financral statements give a true and fair view, 1n accordance
with Generally Accepted Accounting Practice 1n Ireland, and are properly prepared in accordance with Insh
statute compnsing the Companies Acts, 1963 to 2006 and the European Communmities {Credit Institutions
Accounts) Regulations, 1992  We also report to you whether 1n our opinion proper books of account have
been kept by the Group, whether, at the balance shect date, there exists a financial situation requiring the
convening of an extraordinary general meeting of the Group. and whether the mmformation given 1n the
Report of the Directors 1s consistent with the financial statements In addition, we state whether we have
obtained all information and explanations necessary for the purposes of our audit and whether the Group’s
balance sheet and icome statement are in agreement with the books of account

We also report to you if, in our opinion, any information specified by law regarding directors’ remuneration
and directors’ transactions 1s not disclosed and, where practicable, include such information n our report

We read the Report of the Directors and constder the implications for our report 1f we become aware of any
apparent misstatement within it Qur responsibilities do not extend to other information




INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF MERRILL LYNCH INTERNATIONAL BANK LIMITED

BASIS OF AUDIT OPINION

We conducted our audit 1n accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) 1ssued by
the Auditing Practices Board  An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the
amounts and disclosures 1n the financial statements It also includes an assessment of the significant
estimates and judgements made by the directors in the preparaton of the financial statements and of
whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the Group's circumstances, consistently apphed and
adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the intormation and explanations which we
considered necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the
financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularnity or
error  In forming our opinion we evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of mformation 1n the
financial statements

OPINION

In our opimon the financial statements

e give a true and fair view, 1n accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Practice 1n Ireland, of the
state of the affairs of the Company and the Group as at 28 December 2007 and of the profit of the
Group for the year then ended.

e have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Acts, 1963 to 2006 and the European
Communities (Credit Institutions  Accounts} Regulations, 1992

We have obtamed all the information and explanations we considered necessary for the purpose of our
audit In our oprnion proper books of account have been kept by the Group The Group's balance sheet
and Its income statement are 1n agreement with the books of account

In our opmion the information given wn the Report of the Directors 1s consistent with the financial
statements

The net assets of the Group, as stated 1n the Group balance sheet are more than half the amount of 1ts
called-up share capital and, 1n our opinion, on that basis there did not exist at 28 December 2007 a financial
situation which, under Section 40(1) of the Compames (Amendment) Act, 1983, would require the
convening of an extraordinary general mecting of the Group

e lo .‘H-e > Gucke

Chartered Accountants and Regstered Auditors
Dubiin
13 March 2008




MERRILL LYNCH INTERNATIONAL BANK LIMITED
STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The sigmiticant accounting policies adopted by the Group are set out below
BASIS OF PREPARATION

[he financial statements have been prepared n accordance with accounting standards generally accepted
m Ireland and Insh statute compnsing the Compames Acts, 1963 to 2006 and the European Communities
{Credit Institutions  Accounts) Regulations, 1992

ACCOUNTING CONVENTION

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified to include certain
assets and habilitics at market value and are denonmunated i US Doltars (US$) Where necessary,
comparative figures have been adjusted to conform with changes n presentation in the current year

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

During the year, the Group has adopted Financial Reporting Standard (‘FRS') 20 "Share-Based Payment’,
FRS 23 “The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates” and FRS 26 Financial Instruments
Measurement” The Group has also decided to carly adopt FRS 29 ‘Financial Instruments Disclosures’

FRS 20 specifies the accounting treatment to be adopted (including the disclosures to be provided) by
entities making share-based payments In particular, 1t requires entities to recognise an expense, measured
at fair value, in respect of the share-based payments they make The Group has adopted FRS 20
retrospectively and as a result there has been a restatement of prior year results, detals of which are
included 1n Note 6 to the financial statements The additional disclosure requirements associated with FRS
20 are included 1n Note 31 to the financial statements

The adoption of FRS 26 resulted 1n changes to accounting policies that deal with the classification and
measurement of financial mstruments  This standard was applied prospectively in accordance with the
transitional provisions of the standard and the exemption from restating comparatives in FRS 26 paragraph
108D has been taken More detailed information about the adoption of FRS 26 1s included 1n Note 25

FRS 29 replaces the disclosure requirements of FRS 25 ‘Financial Instruments Disclosure and
Presentation’, and applies to those entities applying FRS 26 The disclosures required by the standard
include mformation on the sigmticance of financial instruments for an entity’s financial position and
performance, information about exposure to nsks ansing from financial instruments and the entity’s
objectives, policies and processes for managing capital  FRS 29 has no impact on the financial results of
the Group and the additional disclosure requirements can be seen in notes 25 to 29 to the financial
statements

GROLP ACCOUNTS

‘The consohdated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company All intra-group balances, transactions, income and expenses are eliminated on
consohdation The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting policies

Subsidiaries which are those companies and other entities, 1 which the Group. directly or indirectly has
power to govern the financial and operating policies are consclidated
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MERRILL LYNCH INTERNATIONAL BANK LIMITED
STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

GROUP ACCOUNTS (CONTINUED)

Subsidianes are consobidated from the date on which control s transferred to the Gioup and are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases  The purchase method of accounting 15 used to account
for the acquisition of subsidiarnies  ‘The cost of an acquisiion 15 measured at the tair value of the
consideration at the date of acquisitton, plus costs directly attributable to the acquisiion  Goodwill ansing
on consolidation ot subsidiary undertakings, being the ¢xcess of the cost of the investment over the fair
value of the Group s share of separable net assets at the date of acquisition 1s caprtahised and amortised on
a straight hine basis over a 20 year penod retlecting 1ts estimated useful hife

Certain Group undertakings have entered nto securiusation transactions in order to finance specific loans
and receivables

All financial assets subject to secuntisation continue 1o be held on the Group’s balance sheet and a hability
1s recognised for the proceeds of the funding received, unless

. substantially all the nsks and rewards associated with the financial instruments have been transterred
outside the Group, in which case the assets are derecogmsed 1n full, or

. a sigmficant portion, but not all, of the nsks and rewards have been transferred outside the Group, 1n
which case the asset will continue to be recogmsed to the extent of the Group’s continuing
mvolvement

INTEREST INCOME AND EXPENSE

Interest income and expense are recogmised n the mcome statement for ail mstruments measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method

The effective interest rate method 1s a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a
tinancial hability and of atlocating the interest income or expense over the relevant period The effective
interest rate 1s the rate that discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected hie
of the financial instrument or, when approprnate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset or liability The calculation includes all fees pard or recerved between parties to the contract
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transactions costs and all other premiums or discounts

FEES AND COMMISSIONS

The Group earns fee income from a diverse range of services Underwniting revenues and fees for merger
and acquisition adwisory services are accrued when services for the transactions are substantially
completed Transaction-related expenses are deferred to match revenue recognition

Fees and commussions also include charges made to affiliated undertakings to remunerate services
provided or reimburse expenditure incurred by the Group These are recogmised on an accruals basis

DEALING PROFITS

Dealing profits include net reahsed and unrealised gains and losses trom marking 10 market all trading
mstruments on a daily basis

g




MERRILL LYNCH INTERNATIONAL BANK LIMITED
STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

FINANCIAL ASSETS

On 1mnal recogmition. financral assets are classitied 1nto held for trading, availabie-for-sale financial assets
or loans and recenables

(a) Held for trading

Financial assets classified as held for trading are acquired principally for the purpose of selling 1n the short
term or if so destgnated by management Denvatives are also categonsed as held for trading unless they
are designated as hedging instruments

tmancial assets are imtially recogmised at fair value plus, for all financial assets not carned at fair value
through the income statement, directly atinbutable transactions costs

Long and short mventory posttions, including debt secunties and other fixed income securities, held for
trading purposes are recorded on a trade date basis and are valued at market price at the close of business
on the balance sheet date  The net changes in fair values are reflected 1n the income statement for the
current year Further details about the Group’s financtal mstruments are included i the risk management
section n Note 28 to the financial statements

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-denvative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted 1n an active market other than (a) those that the Group intends to sell immediately or in the short
term, which are classified as held for trading, (b) those that the Group upon 1nitial recogmtion designates
as avatlable-for-sale, or (¢) those for which the Group may not recover substantially all of its imtial
mvestment, for reasons other than credit detenoration

Loans and receivables are carmed at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less an
allowance for impairment Interest calculated using the effective interest rate method 1s recognised 1n the
mcome statement

The Group’s lending activities include commercial lending, residential mortgage lending, securities based
lending and interbank placements

{¢)} Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are those intended to be held for a penod of ime, which may be sold 1n
response 10 needs for hquidity or changes n interest rates, exchange rates or equity prices

Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value  Gamns or losses ansing from changes in the
fair value of available-for-sale financial assets are rccognised directly in equity, until the financial asset s
derecognised or impaired at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity should
be recognised in the income statement

12




MERRILL LYNCH INTERMATIONAL BANK LIMITED
STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

DERIVATIV E FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING

All denvatives are carried as assets when tair value 1s positive and as habihines when fair value 15 negative
Dernatives are mitially recognised at tair value on the date on which a denvative contract 1s entered into
and are subscquently remeasured at thew fair value  Fair values are obtained from quoted market prices in
actine markets, including recent market transactions and valuatton techmiques, including discounted cash
flow models and options pricing models, as appropriate

The method of recogmising the resulting fair value gain or loss depends on whether the denvative 1s
designated as a hedging instrument, and 1f so, the nature of the wem being hedged  The Group designates
certatn derivatives as either, hedges of the fair value of recogmsed assets or habilities or firm commitments
(*fair value hedge’), or hedges of a net investment n a foreign operation (“net investment hedge’)

The Group documents, at the inception of the transaction, the relationship between hedging instruments
and hedged 1tems, as well as 1its nsk management objective and strategy for undertaking various hedge
transactions  The Group also documenis 11s assessment, both at mnception and on an ongong basis, of
whether the denivatives used tn hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes n fair values
or cash flows of the hedged 1tems

(a) Fair value hedge

Changes n the fawr value of derivatives that are designated and qualhify as fawr value hedges are recorded in
the income statement, together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or habihity that are
atinbutable to the hedged nsk  Effective changes in fair value of interest rate swaps and related hedged
items are reflected 1n Interest Income Any neffectiveness 1s recorded in Dealing Profits

If the hedge no longer meets the cniteria for hedge accounting, the adjustment to the carrying amount of a
hedged 1tem for which the effective interest method 1s used 1s amortised to the income statement over the
period to maturity

(b) Netinvestment hedge

The effective portion of changes 1n the farr value of denvatives that are designated and qualify as net
investrnent hedges are recogmised 1n equity  The gamn or loss relating to the neffecuve portion 1s
recognised immedhately 1in the income statement — ‘net trading mcome — transaction gans less losses’
Gans and losses accumulated i equity are included 1 the income statement when there 1s disposal of the
foreign operation

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

On minal recognition, a financial hability 1s classified as held for trading sf 1t 1s mcurred principally for the
purpose of selling in the near term, or forms part of a portfohio of trading instruments that are managed
together and for which there 15 evidence of short-term profit taking

Held for trading financial habilities are recogmsed at fair value with transaction costs being 1ecogmsed m

the income statement Subsequently they are measured at fair value Gamns and losses are recognmised
through the income statement as they anse
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MERRILL LYNCH INTERNATIONAL BANK LIMITED
STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

FAIR VALUE

The fair value of a financial instrument at inial recogmition 1s the transacuon price {1 e the fair value of
the consideration given or recerved). unless the fawr value of that instrument 1s evidenced by comparison
with other obsernvable current market transactions tn the same instrument (1 without modification or
repackaging) or based on a valuation techmque whose vanables include only data from observable
muarhets

The Group has entered into transactions where fair value 1s deternuned using valuation models for which
not all sigmificant inputs are market observable prices or rates  Such trading instruments are imbnally
recognised at the transaction price although the value obtained from the relevant valuation model may
ditter  The difference between the transaction pnice and the model value 15 not recognised immediately in
the income statement, but deferred until the instrument’s fair value can be determined using market
observable nputs, or 1s realised Subsequent changes in fawr value are recogmised immediately in the
mcome statement

The fair values of quoted mmvestments 1n active markets are based on current prices  [f there 1s no active
market for a financial assct, the Group establishes fair value using valuation techmiques These include the
use of recent arms-length transactions, discounted cash flow analysis, option pneing models and other
vafuation techmiques commonly used by market participants More detailed information in relation to the
fair valuc of financial instruments 1s included 1n Note 26

MARKET AND CLIENT RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

Recervables from and payables to customers include amounts due on cash and margin transactions Due to
their short-term nature, such amounts approximate fair value

SALE AND REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS

Securittes sold under agreements to repurchase and securities purchased under agreements to resell are
recorded as financing transacttons at the amount received or paid plus accrued interest at the balance sheet
date

Securities borrowed and loaned transactions are recorded at the amount of cash collateral advanced or
received

NETTING

Where the Group intends to settle (with any of its debtors or creditors) on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the habihity simultaneously and the Group has the legal night to do so, the balance included
within the consolidated financial statements 1s the net balance due to or due from the customer

Financial instruments are reported separately as assets and habilines regardiess of whether a legal nght of
set-off exists under a master netting agreement enforceable in law as there 1s no intention to settle net




MERRILL LYNCH INTERNATIONAL BANK LIMITED
STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

INPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

Losses for impaired loans are recogmsed when there 1s objective evidence that impairment of a loan or
porttohio ot loans has occurred  Impairment losses are calculated on individual loans and on loans assessed
collectively

Individually assessed loans

At each batance sheet date, the Group assesses on a case-by-case basis whether there 1s any objective
evidence that a loan 1s impaired  This procedure 1s apphed to all accounts that are considered individually
stgnificant

Objective evidence of impairment exasts if one or more of the followtng events have occurred

¢ the borrower s 1n significant difficulty,

e  actual breach of contract, such as defautlt or delinquency i interest or principal payments,

¢ the lender grants concessions to the borrower, for reasons relating to the borrower’s financial
difficulty, that are more favourable conditions than the Jender would otherwise consider, or

e there s a high probabihity that the borrower will undergo bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation

Impairment losses are calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows of a loan using 1ts orignal
etfective mterest rate and comparing the resultant present value with the loan’s current carrying amount
Any loss 1s charged to the income statement  The carrying amount of impaired loans on the balance sheet
15 reduced through the use of an allowance account

If the amount of an impairment loss decreases 1n a subsequent period, and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurnng after the impairment was recogmsed, the excess 1s wntten back by
rcducing the loan impairment allowance account accordingly The reversal 1s recogmised n the income
statement

Loans {and the related impanrment allowance account) are normally wntten off, either partially or in full,
when there 15 no realistic expectation of recovery of these amounts

Collectively assessed loans

Collectively assessed loans are split into two groups provisions for impaired loans that are below
individual assessment thresholds (collective impatred loan provisions) and loan losses that have been
curred but that had not been separately 1denuified at the balance sheet date (latent loss provisions)
Individually assessed loans for which no evidence of loss has been specifically 1dentified are grouped
together according to their crednt rnisk charactenstics for the purpose of calculating an estimated collective
loss  This reflects impairment losses incurred at the balance sheet date which will only be individually
identified n the future

The collective impairment allowance 1> determined afier taking into account

s istorical loss expenence in portfolios of simmlar credit nisk charactensucs.

s the eshmated period between impairment occurring and the loss bemng 1dentified and evidenced by the
establishment of an approprnate allowance against the individual loan, and

s  management’s experienced judgement as to whether current economic and credit conditions are such
that the actual level of inherent losses 1s likely 1o be greater or less than that suggested by histoncal
experience

The period between a loss occurring and 1ts identification 1s estimated by management for each 1dentified
portfolio




MERRILL LYNCH INTERNATIONAL BANK LIMITED
STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

GOODWILL

Goodwill anising on acquisition of subsidiary undertakings s defined as the excess of the cost of
mvestment over the fair value of the Group’s share of separable net assets at the date of acquisition
Recogmsed goodwill 1s capitalised and amortised on a straight line basis over a 20 year penod reflecting its
estimated useful hfe  Impairment testing 1s performed by comparing the present value of the expected
future cash flows from a business with the carrying amount of its net assets, including attributable
goodwill  Goodwill 15 stated at amortised cost less accumulated impairment losses which are charged to
the income statement

TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION
All tangible fixed assets are stated at historical cost, net of accumulated depreciation

Depreciation 1s provided in equal annual instalments over the estimated useful lives of the assets as
follows

Leasehold improvements 4 to 9 years
Communication equipment 3 to 5 years
Furniture and fittings 4 10 8 years
Motor vehicles 4 years
Computer equipment 3 years
TAXATION

Income tax on the profit or loss for the year compnises current tax and deferred tax

Current tax 1s the tax expected to be payable on the profit for the year, calculated using tax rates enacted by
the balance sheet date, taking into account overseas taxation where appropriate and any adjustments to tax
payable in respect of previous years

Deferred tax 1s recogmsed as a hability or an asset 1f, prior to the balance sheet date, the Group has entered
into transactions or events that have occurred and that give nse to timing differences giving the Group an
obhgation to pay more tax m the future or a right to pay less tax in the future Deferred tax assels are
recogmsed to the extent that they are considered recoverable by management Timing differences arise
from the inclusion of ttems of income and expenditure in taxation computations tn periods different trom
those 1n which they are included n the financial statements

SHARE BASED PAYMENTS

Memll Lynch & Co Inc, ulimate parent company and controlling party of the Group, grants equity
settled share based payment awards to employees of the Group under vanous ncentrve schemes  Equity
settled share based paymient plans are measured based on the fair value of those awards at grant date  The
farr value determined at the grant date 1s expensed on an accelerated basis over the vesting penod, based
on the Group’s estimate of shares that will eventually vest

The Group has applied the requirements of FRS 20 on a fully retrospective basis
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MERRILL LYNCH INTERNATIONAL BANK LIMITED
STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

PENSIONS

The Group participates in a number of detined benefit and defined contribution pension schemes

The Group 15 one of a number of Memlil Lynch emplovers based in the United Kingdom which participate
in the Mernll Lynch (UK) Penston Plan, (the Plan’, formerly the Mermli Lynch (UK) Final Salary Plan),
which was closed to new entrants with effect from 30 June 1997 and to contributions from existing
members with ¢ffect from 30 June 2004 The funding cost relating to the Plan 1s assessed i accordance
with the advice of independent qualified actuanes using the projected umit method The Group has been
unable to dentify 1ts share of the underlying assets and habilities of the Plan and accordingly accounts for
the Plan as 11t were a defined contribution scheme

The Group also operates a defined benefit schemie in Germany. all other schemes operated by the Group
are defined contribution schemes The major defined contribution scheme 1n Ireland 1s the Mernll Lynch
Employee Benefit Plan The costs of defined contribution schemes are calculated as a percentage of each
employee’s annual salary based on their age and length of service with the Group and are charged to the
income statement 1n the year in which they fall due

LEASES

All leases are operating leases and the annual rentals are charged to the income statement 1n the accounting
period to which they relate

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

The functional currency of the Group 1s US Dollars Revenues and expenses ansing from transactions to
be settled n foreign currencies are translated into US Dollars at average monthly market rates of exchange
Monetary assets and habilities are translated into US Dollars at the market rates of exchange ruling at the
balance sheet date Exchange differences anising from the translation of foreign currencies are reflected in
the income statement

The financial statements of branches and subsidianes whose functional currency 1s not the US Dollar are
translated mto US Dollars at the closing rate for the balance sheet and at the average rate of exchange for
the year for the income statement Translation differences arising on the profit and loss generated for the
current year and on opening net assets are taken directly as a movement 1n reserves




MERRILL LYNCH INTERNATIONAL BANK LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 28 DECEMBER 2007

Notes 2007 2006
as restated
USS'000 USS 000
[nterest income |
- Otherinterest receivable and similar income 2,509,541 1,599,165
- Interest payable and similar charges (1.745,633) (1,208,390)
Fees and commussions 2
- Recewvable 773202 498,660
- Payable (897.409) (519,907)
Dealing profits 3 1,112,324 739,208
Other operating income 112,367 222,559
TOTAL OPERATING INCOME 1,864,462 1,331,295
Admunistrative expenses 4 835,005 765,981
Depreciation 8,072 5,316
Amortisation and impaiment of goodwill 32,110 6,031
Other operating charges 34928 20,976
Provisions for bad and doubttul debts 99,332 3,039
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 1,009,537 801,943
PROFIT ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES BEFORE
TAXATION 5 854,925 529,352
Tax on profit on ordinary acuivities 8 {103,909) 20037
PROFIT ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES
AFTER TAXATION 751,016 549,389

All gains and losses anse from continuing activities  Notes 1 to 37 form an integral part of the financial

statements

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 13 March 2008 and signed on tts

behalf by

] DIRECTORS
L %u/(/
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MERRILL LYNCH INTERNATIONAL BANK LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF TOTAL
RECOGNISED GAINS AND LOSSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 28 DECEMBER 2007

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF TOTAL
RECOGNISED GAINS AND LOSSES

Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders

Transition adjustment on adopting FRS 26

Tax effect on transition adjustment on adopting FRS 26
Gains on revaluation of avadlable-for-sale invesiments
taken to equity

Tax effect on revaluation of available-for-sale investments
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations

T'otal recognised gains relating to the year

Prior period adjustment

Notes 2007 2006
LSS 000 USS 000

751,016 549,389

1,592 -

(557) -

(1,553) -

557 -

43,185 28,654

794 240 578,043

6 (19,194) 54,127
775,046 632,170
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MERRILL LYNCH INTERNATION AL BANK LIMITED
GROUP BAILLANCE SHEET AS AT 28 DECEMBER 2007

ASSETS

Cash and balances at Central Bank

Loans and advances (o banks

Loans and adyvances 1o customers

Market and chent recervables

Debt secunities and other fixed income secunties

Trading assets
Deterred taxation
Goodwill

Tangible fixed assets
Other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Depostts by banks

Customer accounts
Non-recourse financing
Market and chient payables
Trading liabilities

Other habilities

Accruals and deferred income
Subordinated debt

TOTAL LIABILITIES

SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS
Share capital

Share premium account
Capital contribution
Available-for-sale reserve
Retained earmings

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS® FUNDS

MENMORANDUM ITENS

Guarantees, undrawn commitments and assets pledged as

collateral security

Notes

9

10
12
13
28
14
15

16

17
18
11
19
28
21

22

23
24
24
24
24

28

2007 2006

as restated

USS 000 USS 000
038,683 328,328
9.622,170 7,817,545
20.964,148 22747145
11,876,270 7.323,596
1,036,020 5,204,960
194,753,955 110,120,177
43.020 26,731
150336 142,314
29617 12,498
4,403,950 2,818,992
252,818,169 156,542,286
1,001,267 55,050
26,906,520 21,807,151
1,853,456 2,002,073
3,074,042 8,383,579
199,856,302 112,923,728
3,270,004 3,667,223
430,619 457,325
2,760,000 -
244,152,300 149,296,129
312,067 31,985
3,898,359 3872970
790,875 190,875

39 -

3,944 529 3,150,327
8,605,869 7,246,157
252,818,169 156,542,286
52,130,685 33,335,363

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 13 March 2008 and signed on 1ts

%ﬁ }ii@ | —

behalf by
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MERRILL LYNCH INTERNATIONAL BANK LIMITED
COMPANY BALANCE SHEET AS AT 28 DECENMBER 2007

Notes 2007 2006
as restated
LSS 000 USS 000
ASSETS
Cash and balances at Central Bank 938683 328,328
Loans and advances to banks 9 9,115,104 7.142.360
Loans and advances to customers 10 25.,725.441 19471 461
Sccuntised assets 2,804,544 1,949,49]
Less non-recourse financing {1.853.456) {2,002.073)
11 051 088 (52,582)
Market and client receivables 12 11,682.640 7,108,708
Debt securtties and other fixed income secunties 13 1,036,020 5.204.960
Trading assets 28 194,736,244 110,082,929
Deferred taxation I4 39,670 24,263
Investment in subsidiaries 14 256,172 194,321
Tangible fixed assets 22,517 7,180
Other assets 16 5,182 987 3,533,099
TOTAL ASSETS 249,686,566 153,045,027
LIABILITIES
Deposits by banks 17 843987 55,050
Customer accounts 18 26,464,899 21,308,873
Market and client payables 19 8,079,994 8,014,762
Trading habihties 28 199,842 760 112,976,053
Other habihues 21 3278923 3,575,204
Accruals and deferred income 237983 353,573
Subordinated debt 22 2,760,000 -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 241,508 546 146,283,615
SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS
Share capital 23 32,067 31,985
Share premium account 24 3,898,359 31,872,970
Capital contnbution 24 790,875 190,875
Available-for-sale reserve 24 39 -
Retained eamings 24 3,456,680 2,665,582
8,178 020 6,761,412
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS'® FUNDS 249,686,566 153,045,027
MEMORANDUM ITEMS
Guarantees, undrawn commitments and assets pledged as
collateral secunty 52,041,233 33,257,793

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 13 March 2008 and signed on 1its

behalf by

ket
WL

KB%C\
DIRECTORS




MERRILL LYNCH INTERNATIONAL BANK LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 28 DECEVMIBER 2007

I. INTEREST INCOME 2007 20006
UsS 000 USS 000

Other 1nterest recervable and similar income
- Loans and advances to banks 547 255 389,993
- Loans and advances to customers 1,657 497 1,014,058
- Debt secunties and other fined imncome secunties 62,279 36,999
- Loans to atfilates 236,894 155,559
- Other assets 5,616 2,550
2,509,541 1,599,165

Interest payable and similar charges

- Deposits by banks (260,615) (185,378)
- Customer accounts (893,230) (669,972)
- Non-recourse tinancing (112,603) (138,720)
- Loans from affihates (470,251) (195,787)
- Other llabilities (2,954) (18,533)

(1,745,653) (1,208.390)

included mn interest receivable 15 $7,137,000 of interest on impaired loans, accrued but not yet recerved

2. FEES AND COMNMISSIONS 2007 2006
USS'000 US$ 000
Receivable
- Imtercompany service fees 571,114 358.447
- Investment banking fees 81,989 46,157
- Pnvate client fees 90,788 75,897
- Commissions 11,322 7,587
- Other bank fees 18,079 10,572
773,292 498,660
Payable
- Intercompany service fees (724,633) (405,936)
- Brokerage fees (111,049) {(77,108)
- Exchange and clearing house fees (25,180) (12,469)
- Other fees {36,547) (24,394)
(897,409) (519,907)

3. DEALING PROFITS

Dealing profits are generated from financial assets and financial habilines  Included in the figure for
dealing profits 15 an amount of $1,553,000, relating to available-for-sale financial assets, that has been
recycled through the income statement following matunty of assets that had previously been recogmsed 1n

equity
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MERRILL LYNCH INTERNATIONAL BANK LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 28 DECEMBER 2007

4. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 2007 20006
USS 000 USS 000

as restated

Wages and salaries 547910 548.059
Social welfare 32,501 19,434
Penston costs (Note 20) 11,072 18,786
Other administrative expenses 243,612 179,102
835,095 765,981

5. PROFIT ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES BEFORE 2007 2006
TAXATION US$ 000 US$ 000

Profit on ordinary activiies before taxation 1s stated after crediting / (charging)

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets (8,072)
Dtrectors’ remuneration

Fees paid by the Group (358)
Other emoluments (18,354)

(Included in 2007 US$75,000 (2006 USS$56,000) 1n respect of pension
contrnbutions)

Operating lease rentals (Note 32) (27,043)
Auditors’ remuneration (2,767)

6. PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

The comparative figures in the financial statements have been restated 1n order to reflect the adoption of

FRS 20

Prior to the adoption ot FRS 20, share based payment plans were measured based on the fair value of those
awards at the balance sheet date and expensed on a straight Iine basis  Under FRS 20, equity settled share
based payment plans granted by Memll Lynch & Co Inc, are measured based on the fair value of those
awards at grant date, and are expensed on an accelerated basis over the vesting period As the Group has
contracted to reimburse the ultimate parent for the i1ssuance of shares under the awards, there 1s no net

equity impact

Income statement

Administration expenses
Tax
Decrease 1n profit for the year

Balance Sheet

Deferred taxation
Other habtlities
Decrease 1n net assets

Decrease 1n sharcholders funds

as restated

(5,316)

(231)
(4,670)

(14,031
(2,327)

2000
Uss’000

(20,017)
823

(19,194)

823

(20.017)
(19,194)

_(19.194)
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MERRILL LYNCH INTERNATIONAL BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 28 DECEMBER 2007

7. PROFIT DEALT WITH IN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY

Ot the consolidated profit afier tax for the financial year, USS788.291,000 (2006 U5S354.220,000) 1s
attributable to the operations ot the Company [he income statement of the Company 13 not presented by
virtue ot the exemption contained within Section 3(2) ot the Companies (Amendment) Act 1986

8. TAX ON PROFIT O\ ORDINARY ACTIVITIES

Taxation on profit on ordmary activities
Corporation tax charge
Deterred tax credit

Adjustments 1n respect of prior years

The cffective tax rate for 2007 15 12 15% (2006 (3 79%))

Factors affecting tax charge for the pertod

2007 2006
USS'000 USS 000
as restated

9,232 68,018
(14.408) (21,487
(5,176) 46,531
109,083 (66,568)
103,907 (20,037)

The current tax charge for the year 1s lower than the current charge that would result from applying the
standard rate of Insh Corporation tax (2007 12 5%, 2006 12 5%) to the profit on ordinary activities The

difference 1s explained below

Profit on ordinary activities before tax

Tax charge at the standard rate of corporation tax
Effects of

Foreign taxes
Tax losses recerved from aftiliates for no payment
Other

Corporation tax charge

2007 2006
US$'000 US$'000
854,925 529,352
106,866 66,169
115,641 101,392
(222,853) (99,190)
9,578 (353)
9,232 68,018
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MERRILL LYNCH INTERNATIONAL BANK LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 28 DECEMBER 2007

9, LOANS AND ADVANCES TO BANKS 2007 2006
UsS 000 USS 000
- Group
Analysed by remaiming maturity
Repayable on demand 3.219.979 1,552,847
3 months or less but not on demand 6.269.,000 6,094,247
1 year or less but over 3 months 60,578 170,451
5 years or less but over 1 year 72,613 -
9,622,170 7,817,545
- Company
Analysed by remaimning maturity
Repayable on demand 2,847,285 1,177,396
3 months or less but not on demand ‘ 6,145,206 5,796,432
1 year or less but over 3 months 50,000 168,532
5 years or less but over 1 year 72,613 -
09,115,104 7,142,360
10. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTONMNIERS 2007 2006
USS'000 USS'000
- Group
Analysed by remaiming matunty
Repayable on demand 2,068,008 -
3 months or less but not on demand 6,092,322 7,088,703
1 year or less but over 3 months 5,547,795 4,094,607
5 years or less but over 1 year 5,353,695 7,749 945
5 years and over 10,902,328 3,813,890
29.964,148 22,747,145
- Company
Analysed by remaining matunty
Repayable on demand 1,770,180 -
3 months or less but not on demand 5,048,369 5,796,772
1 year or less but over 3 months 5,354,523 3,898,124
5 years or less but over | year 5,294,083 7,729.694
5 years and over 8,258,286 2,046,871
25,725 441 19,471,461

There were loan loss provisions of US$129.220,000 as at 28 December 2007 (2006 US$S$29,888,000)
agamnst assets m the Group’s portfolio  Loan loss provisions i respect of assets in the Company’s
portfoho amounted 1o US$103,799,000 as at 28 December 2007 (2006 US$14,378,000)




MERRILL LYNCH INTERNATIONAL BANK LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 28 DECEMBER 2007

11. SECURITISED ASSETS

Loans and advances 1o customers include mortgage loans which are subject to non-recourse finance
arrangements  These loans have been sold to special purpose securitisation companics, Mortgages No 6
Plc, Mortgages No 7 Plc, Newgate Funding Plc and Taurus CMBS No 2 Srl which are nlumately
beneficially owned by chantable trusts and have been funded primanly through the 1ssuance of floating
rate notes No gain or loss has been recognised as a result of these sales  The special purpose securittsation
compantes are consolidated as legal subsidiaries for these purposes, under FRS 2 *Accounting for
Subsidiary Undertakings’, the Companies Acts 1963 to 2006 and the Europcan Communitics (Credit
Institutions, Account) Regulations, 1992 A lhist of all of the Group’s principal subsidianies 1s included 1n
Note 34

Holders of the floating rate notes are only entitled to obtain payment of principal and interest to the extent
that the resources of the securitisation companies are sufficient to support such payments, and the holders
of the floating rate notes have no recourse in any other form  The priortty and amount of claims on the
proceeds generated by the assets are determined in accordance wath a sinict prionty of payments

The Group 1s entitled to receive payment of deferred consideration for the sale of the mortgage loans  As
part of the deferred consideration, the Group 15 enutled to receive any residual amounts less a
predetermined amount of the outstanding principal on the floating rate notes on each interest determination
date The Group 1s also entitled to receive mortgage redemption penalty interest on the securitised loans

The Group has no obligation or intention to repurchase the benefit of any secuntised loans except if certain
representations and warranties given by the Group at the time of transfer are breached The Group also has
no obligation or intention to financially support any of the secunitisation companies and does not intend to
do so The special purpose secuntisation companies are as follows

- Company 2007 2007
Secuntsation Company Date of Secuntisation Gross Assets Non-recourse

Secuntised finance
USS$ 000 USS 000
Mortgages No 6 Plc Dec 2004 277,140 307,767
Mortgages No 7 Plc Aug 2005 696,773 746,830
Taurus CMBS No 2 Srl Dec 2005 139,322 152,126
New gate Funding Plc Dec 2007 1,691,309 646,733
2,804,544 1,853,456
12, MARKET AND CLIENT RECEIVABLES 2007 2006
USS$'000 US$'000
as restated
- Group

Analysed by remaining matunty
On demand 11,876,270 7,323,596
11,876 270 7,323,596

- Company

Analysed by remaining maturity
On demand 11,682 640 7,108,708
11,682,640 7,108,708
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MERRILL LYNCH INTERNATIONAL BANK LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 28 DECEMBER 2007

13. DEBT SECURITIES AND OTHER FIXED INCOME 2007
SECURITIES USS 000

- Group and Company
Held tor Trading

Listed securities

2000
UUSS 000
ds restated

- Government secunties 567,075 1.960,756
- Corporate bonds 378,906 603,097
Unlisted secunties
- Bank and Bwilding Society Certificates of Deposit - 2,631,107
045981 5,204,960
Available-for-sale
Unlisted secunties
- Bank and Building Society Certificates of Deposit 90,039 -
90,039 -
Total debt secunities and other fixed income secunties 1,036,020 5,204,960
Analysed by remaining maturity
Due within one year 60,039 3,850,273
Due one year and over 945981 1,354,687
1,036,020 5,204 960

The nsks associated with debt securitres and other fined income securnities are dealt with 1n detail in Note

28
14. DEFERRED TAXATION 2007 2006
USS$ 000 1JS$000

- Group as restated

Timing differences related to

- accelerated capital allowances 351 376

- compensation and social security costs 1,603 16,182

- impairment altowances 28.240 -

- other timing difterences 12,826 10,173
43,020 20,731

- Company

Timing differences related to

- accelerated capital allowances 351 376

- compensation and social security costs 1,603 16,182

- impairment allowances 28,240 -

- other timing differences 9,476 7,705
39,670 24,263
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MERRILL LYNCH INTERNATIONAL BANK LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE Y EAR ENDED 28 DECEMBER 2007

14. DEFERRED TAXATION (CONTINUED)

Movement on deferred taxation: 2007 2006
USS 000 USS'000
as restated

- Group
Balance at start of year 26,731 14,099
Deferred tax charge in income statement relating to current year 14,408 21,487
Adjustment relating to change in future tax rate (1,960) -
Adjustment 1n respect of previous years 3.841 {8,855)
Balance at end of year 43 020 20,731

Movement on deferred taxation:

- Company

Balance at start of year 24,263 3,428
Deferred tax charge 1n tncome statement relating to current year 16,151 22,223
Adjustment relating to change n future tax rate (1,960) -
Adjustment in respect of previous years 1,216 (1,388)
Balance at end of year 39,670 24,263

Management 1s of the opinion that 1t 1s more hkely than not that the Company and the Group will be able
to generate future taxable income to recover the deferred 1ax asset recognised at the balance sheet date,
having considered histornc performance

15. GOODWILL 2007 2000
USS'000 LJS$°000
Cost
At start of year 162,111 109,097
Additions - 43,187
Adjustment for contingent consideration on previous acquisitions 36,409 -
Impairment (21,500) -
Exchange translation 3,955 9,827
At end of year 180,975 162,111
Amortisation
At start of year 19,797 12,573
Charge for year 10,610 6,631
Exchange translation 232 593
At end of year 30,639 19,797
Net Book Value
At start of year 142,314 96,524
Atend of year 156,336 142,314

Goodwill acquired through business combinations was reviewed for permanent impairment during the
year The recoverable amount of the business units 1s based on a value in use calculatton which indicated
a permanent impairment '




MERRILL LYNCH INTERNATIONAL BANK LINMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 28 DECEMBER 2007

16. OTHER ASSETS

- Group

Amounts due trom affiliate companies

Prepaid taxation
Prepayments and accrued income

- Company

Amounts due from affihate companies

Prepaid taxation
Prepayments and accrued income

2007 2000
USS 000 USS'000
3.894,106 1,919,684
70,824 85,287
439,020 814021
4,403,950 2,818,992
4,770,565 2,717,178
65.555 23,416
346,867 792,505
5,182,987 3,533,099

Amounts due from affiliate companies at 28 December 2007 includes an amount of USS$8,367,943 (2006
Nil) due from the Group’s immediate parent, Mernill Lynch Group Holdings Limited

17. DEPOSITS BY BANKS

- Group
Analysed by remaining matunty
Repayable on demand

- Company
Analysed by remaining maturity
Repayable on demand

18. CUSTOMER ACCOUNTS

- Group

Analysed by remaining maturnity
Repayable on demand

3 months or less but not on demand
1 year or less but over 3 months

5 years or less but over 1 year

5 years and over

- Company

Analysed by remaining maturity
Repayable on demand

3 months or less but not on demand
I year or less but over 3 months

5 years or less but over | vear

5 years and over

2007 2006
US$'000 US$ 000
as restated

1,001,267 55,050
1,001,267 55,050
843,987 55,050
843,987 55,050
2007 2006

US$ 000 USS 000
3,834,016 2,303,131
20,568,575 18,513,115
2,279 908 963,747
56,894 10,242
167,127 16,916
26,906,520 21,807,151
3,392.395 2,303,131
20,568,573 18,114,837
2,279,908 863,747
56,894 10,242
167,127 16,916
26,464,899 21,308,873
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19. MARKET AND CLIENT PAY ABLES 2007 2006
USS§ 000 USS 000
ds restated
- Group
Analysed by remaimming maturity
On demand 3,074 042 8.383 579
8,074,042 8,383,579
- Company
Analysed by remaining maturnity
On demand 8,079,994 8,014,762
8,079,994 8,014,762

20. PENSION COMMITMENTS

The Group operates pension plans both in Ireland and n 1its overscas branches and subsidiaries The
pension charges for the year are as tollows

- Group 2007 200.6
LSS000 USS'000

Defined contnibution scheme 12,996 13,005
Defined benefit scheme (1,924) 5,781
11,072 18,786

The Group 1s a member of a multt employer group scheme, the Memll Lynch (UK) Pension Plan (‘the
Plan’), formerly the Memll Lynch (UK) Final Salary Plan Valuations of the Plan are carned out
tnenniaily with the last valuation being performed as at 1 January 2006 That assessment showed that the
Plan had a deficit of £103 3 million which represented a funding level of 83% This represents an increase
in the funding level from 69% recorded at the previous valvation m 2003, improvements were due 1o
additional contributions and good returns on investments  Contnbutions to the Plan are recorded in the
Company’s accounts as ‘defined contribution’ in line with accounting rules on multi-employer schemes

The assets of all other defined contribution schemes operated by the Group are held separately in
independently admimistered funds  The charge in respect of these schemes 1s calculated on the basis of
contributions due 1n the financial year

A defined benetit scheme 1s operated 1n Germany and the main economic assumptions employed for
determuning the costs are as follows

Date of latest valuation | October 2007
Salary growth 500%
Pension increases 2 00%
Dascount rate 5 50%

The German scheme’s habilines as at 28 December 2007 were USS45 2 milhon (2006 1JS$49 2 millicn)
and are provided 1 the accounts In line with German business practices. the defined benefit pension
scheme s not funded The scheme’s habilities represent the net present value of future penston obligations
to eligible past and current employees  These pension obhigations are partially covered by an independent
insurance provider
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21. OTHER LIABILITIES 2007 2006
USS 000 UsS 000
as restated
- Group

Amounts owed to atfilhate companics 3,049,680 3,496,263
Provision for pensions 60,053 54,721
Corporation tax payable 74,733 82,240
Provision for deferred taxation - 588
Other accruals 85622 33,409
3,270.094 3,667,223

- Company
Amounts owed to affihate companics 3128814 3,457,931
Provision for pensions 60,053 54,721
Corporation tax payable 43,649 61,770
Provision for deferred taxation - 588
Other accruals 46 377 294
3,278,923 3,575,304

Amounis owed to affiliate companies at 28 December 2007 has no amount due to the Group’s immediate
parent, Mernll Lynch Group Holdings Limited (2006 US$20,074,410) Deferred taxation relates to short
term uming difterences

22. SUBORDINATED DEBT 2007 2006
US$°000 US$'000

- Group
US$ 3,680m subordinated debt repayable 01 February 2013, Libor 2,760,000 -
+ 100bps

2,760,000
- Company
USS$ 3,680m subordinated debt repayable 01 February 2013, Libor 2,760,000 -
+ 100bps

2,760,000 -

During 2007 the Group put two new facthties in place with Merrill Lynch & Co, Inc, as follows
USS$3,680,000,0600 maturing on | February 2013 at Libor + 100bps as shown above and US5$2,250,000,000
maturing on | February 2010 at Libor + 100bps which remained undrawn at year end
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23. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised 2007 2007 20006 2000
No USS No LSS

Ordmary shares USSI 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000
A Ordinary shares USSI 15,000,000 15,000,000 15,000,000 15,000,000
B Ordinary shares USSI 30,000 30,000 30,000 30,000
IR Ordinary shares USS]1 1.000 1,000 1,000 1,000
IT Ordinary shares USS1 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000
NL Ordinary shares USSt 5.000 5,000 5,000 5,000
S Ordinary shares US$20 500,000 10,000,000 500,000 10,000,000
SP Ordinary shares USS| 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000
25,551,000 35.051.000 25,551,000 35,051,000

Called up, 1ssued and fully paid 2007 2007 2006 2006
No USS No USS

Ordinary shares USS1 9,207,075 9,207,075 9,125,000 9,125,000
A Ordinary shares US$1 14,320,617 14,320,617 14,320,617 14,320,617
B Ordinary shares USS] 377 377 377 n
IR Ordinary shares USS$1 163 163 163 163
IT Ordinary shares USS1 4.012 4,012 4,012 4,012
NL Ordinary shares USS| 1,080 1,080 1,080 1,080
S Ordinary shares US$20 426,642 8,532,840 426,642 8,532,840
SP Ordinary shares USS] 846 846 846 846
23,960,812 32,067.010 23,878,737 31,984,935

In 2007 the Company 1ssued share capital in order to facilitate the purchase of the net assets of Mernll
Lynch Financial Services Limited  An analysis of the share capital 1ssued, premium associated with these
shares and the net assets acquired 1s shown below

Share Class Nominal  Par Value  Capital Issue Premium Net Assets
US$ USS USS
Ordinary shares USS1 82,075 1 82,075 25,388,925 25,471,000

All shares n 1ssue as at 28 December 2007 rank pan passu n all respects save that upon the return of
capital, such capttal shail be appihied in the following order of pnonty Ordinary Shares followed by the B
Ordinary Shares, IR Ordinary Shares, IT Ordinary Shares, NL Ordinary Shares, SP Ordinary Shares, A
Ordinary Shares and finally the S Ordinary Shares Any surplus afier the repayment of such amounts shall
be distributed between the holders of the shares in proportion to their holdings
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24,  COMBINED STATEMENT OF MOVEMENT IN SHAREHOLDFERS® FUNDS AND

STATEMENT OF MOVEMENT IN RESERVES

- Group (all In US$°000)

As at 29 December 2000
Prior peried adjustment

As restated

Fransiion adjustment on adoption
of FRS 26

Tax eftect on transition
adjustment on adopting FRS 26

As at 30 December 2006

Issue of new shares

Capntal contribution

Profit for the year

Currency translation adjustment
Movement in available-for-sale
reserve

l'ax effect on movement 1n
available-for-sale reserve

As at 28 December 2007

« Company (all in US$°000)

As at 29 December 2006
Prior period adjustiment

As restated

Transition adjustment on adopting
FRS 26

Tax etfect on transitton
adjustment on adopting FRS 26

As at 30 December 2006

Issue of new shares

Capital contribution

Profit for the year

Currency translation adjustment
Movement in available-for-sale
reserve

Tax effect on movement in
available-for-sale resene

As at 28 Dec 2007

Available-
Share Share Caputal for-sale Retamed
Capnal Prenmum  Contnbunton  Reserve Earmings Total
31985 3872970 190.875 - 3,16952] 7,265,351
- - - - (19.194) (19,194)
31985  3,872970 190.875 - 3150327 7.246.157
- - - 1,592 - 1,592
- - - {(557) - (357)
31,985  3.872,970 190,875 1.035 3,150,327 7,247,192
82 25,389 - - - 25,471
- - 600,000 - - 600,000
- - - - 751,016 751,016
- - - - 43,186 43,186
. - (1,553) - (1,553)
- - 557 - 557
32,067  3.898.359 790,875 39 3944529  B.665.869
Available-
Share Share Capital tor-sale Retained
Capital Premium  Contnbution  Reserve Eamings Total
31985  3,872970 190,875 - 2,684,776 6,780,606
- - - - (19,194) {19.194)
31985 3872970 190,875 - 2,665582 6,761.412
- - - 1,592 - 1,592
- - - {357) - (557)
31985 3,872.970 190,875 1,035 2,665582 6,762,447
82 25,389 - - - 25471
- - 600 000 - - 600.000
- - - - 738.291 788,291
- - - . 2,807 2,807
- - - (1,553) - (1.333)
- - - 557 - 557
32,067 3,898,359 790,875 39 3.456,680 8,178,020
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25. ADOPTION OF FRS 26 AND FRS 29

Reconciliation of movements on adoption of FRS 26 at 30 December 2006

The adoption of FRS 26 results in a number of re-measurcments to the opeming balance sheet of the Group

- Group 29 Dec 2006 Effect ot adopting FRS 26 30 Dec 2006
As restated Re- Re-
measurement classification
USS 000 USS$000 USS 000 Uss$ 000

ASSETS
Cash and balances at Central Bank 328,328 - - 328,328
Loans and advances to banks 7.817.,545 - - 7.817.545
Loans and advances to customers 22,747,145 - - 22,747,145
Market and clhient receivables 7.323,596 - - 7.323,596
Debt secunities and other fixed income 5.204.960 (1.592) ) 5.203.368
securites
Trading assets 110,120,177 - - 110,120177
Deferred taxation 26,731 557 - 27.288
Goodwill 142.314 - - 142,314
Tangible fixed assets 12,498 - - 12.498
Other assets 2818992 - - 2,818,992
TOTAL ASSETS 156,542,286 (1,035) - 156,541,251
LIABILITIES
Deposits by banks 55,050 - - 55,050
Customer accounts 21,807,151 - - 21,807,151
Non-recourse financing 2,002,073 - - 2.002,073
Market and client pavables 8,383,579 - - 8,383,579
Trading habilities 112,923,728 - - 112,923,728
Other labilities 3,667,223 - - 3,667,223
Accruals and deferred income 457,325 - - 457,325
TOTAL LIABILITIES 149,296,129 - - 149,296,129
SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS
Share capital 31,985 - - 31,985
Share premum account 3872970 - - 3,872,970
Capital contribution 190,875 - - 190,875
Available-for-sale reserve - (1.035) - (1,035)
Retamned carmings 3150327 - - 31,150 327

7 246,157 (1.035) - 7,245122

; . N

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND 156,542,286 (1,035) . 156,541,251

SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS
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25. ADOPTION OF FRS 26 AND FRS 29 (CONTINUED)

Reconciliation of movements on adoption of FRS 26 at 30 December 2006 (continued)

The adoption of E RS 26 results in a number of re-measurements to the opening balance sheet of the

Company

- Company

ASSETS

Cash and balances at Central Bank
lLoans and advances 10 banks
[Loans and advances to customers
Secuntised assets

Less non-recourse financing
Market and chient recenables
Debt securities and other tixed income
securities

Trading assets

Deferred taxation

[nvestment in subsidiaries
Tangible fixed assets

Other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Deposits by banks

Customer accounis

Market and client payables
Trading liabilities

Other habilities

Accruals and deferred income
TOTAL LIABILITIES

SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS
Share capital

Share premium account
Capital contnbution
Availabte-for-sale reserve
Retamned eamings

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS® FUNDS

29 Dec 2006 Lifect of adopting FRS 26 30 Dec 2006
As restated Re- R.C )
measurement  classification

USS 000 USS 000 1SS 000 USS$ 000
328328 - 328.328
7.142.360 - 7.142.360
19,471 461 - 19 471 461
1,949,491 - 1,949,491
(2 002.073) - (2.002,073)
7 108,708 - 7,108,708
5.204 960 (1,592) 5,203,368
110.082.929 - 110.082 929
24.263 557 24.820
194,321 - 194,321
7180 - 7,180
3,533.099 - 3,533,099
153,045,027 (1,035) 153,043,992
55,050 - 55.050
21,308 873 - 21.308.873
8,014,762 - 8.014,762
112,976 053 - 112 976 053
3,575.304 - 3,575,304
353.573 - 353,573
146,283,615 - 146,283.615
31,985 - 31.985
3,872 970 - 3,872,970
190 875 - 190875
- (1.035) (1,035)
2.0665.582 - 2,665,582
6761 412 {1035) 6.760.377
153,045,027 (1.035) 153,043,992
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25. ADOPTION OF FRS 26 AND FRS 29 (CONTINUED)

Analysis of FRS 26 categories as at 28 December 2007

The following table analyses the carrying amount of financial assets and habihities of the Group as at 28
December 2007 by category and by balance sheet heading

All figures in USS M

ASSETS

Cash and balances at
Central Bank

Loans and advances to
banks

Loans and advances to
custorners

Market and client
receivables

Debt secunties and
other fixed income
securities

Trading assets

LIABILITIES

Deposits by banks
Customer accounts

Non-recourse
financing

Market and client
payables

Trading hiabihties
Subordinated debt

Dernvanves

Dernivatives

Financial designated  designated
assets and as fair as net
Held for Loansand financial  Available- value investment
trading receivables  habihities for-sale hedges hedges
Total
- 939 - - - - 939
- 9.622 - - - 9,622
- 29,964 - - - - 29.964
- - 11.876 - - - 11,876
946 - - 90 - - 1,036
194.754 - - - - - 194,754
195,700 40,525 11,876 92 - - 248,191
- - 1,001 - - - 1,001
- - 26,907 - - - 26,907
- - 1 853 - - - 1.853
- - 8,074 - - - 3.074
199.853 - - - 3 - 199.856
- - 2.760 - - - 2,760
199,853 - 40,595 - 3 - 240,451
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25. ADOPTION OF FRS 26 AND FRS 29 (CONTINUED)

Analysis of FRS 26 categories as at 28 December 2007 (continued)

The following table analyses the carrving amount of financial assets and hiabthities of the Company as at 28

December 2007 by category and by balance sheet heading

All figures in USS™™M Derivatives Denvatives
Financial designated  designated
assets and as fair as net
Held for Loansand  financial  Available- value mvestment
trading  recewvables  habthties tor-sale hedges hedges
ASSETS Total
Cash and balances at
Central Bank - 939 - - - - 939
L.oans and advances to
banks - 9115 - - - 9,115
Loans and advances to
cuslomers - 25,725 - - - - 25,725
Secuntised assets - 2,805 - - - - 2,805
Non-recourse
financing - - (1,853) - - - (1.853)
Market and clhient
recevables - - 11.683 - - - 11,683
Debt securities and
other fixed income
securines 946 - - 90 - - 1,036
Trading assets 194,736 - - - - - 194,736
195,682 38,584 9,830 90 - - 244,186
LIABILITIES
Deposits by banks - - 844 - - - 844
Customer accounts - - 20,465 - - - 26,465
Market and chent
payables - - 8,080 - - - 8,080
Trading habilities 199,840 - - - 3 - 199,843
Subordinated debt - - 2,760 - - 2,760
199,840 - 38,149 - 3 - 237,992
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26. FAIR VALUE INFORMATION

The following table provides an analysis of the fair value of financial instruments of the Group not carmed
at fair value on the balance sheet

ANl figures in USS™™M 2007

Carrying amount Fair value
Financial Assets
Cash and balances at Central Bank 939 939
Loans and advances to banks 9622 9,621
LLoans and advances to customers 29,964 28,954
Market and chent recervables 11,876 11,876
Financial Liabilities
Deposits by banks 1,001 1,001
Customers accounts 26,907 26,907
Non-recourse financing 1,853 1,853
Market and chient payables 8,074 8,074
Subordinated debt 2,760 2,691

The fair value presented n the table above are stated at a specific date and may be sigmificantly different
from the amounts which will actually be paid or received on the matunty or setitement date In many cases,
1t would not be possible to realise immediately fair values

Impact of internal models an fair value calculations

Fair values of certain financ:al instruments recogmsed 1n the financial statements may be determined in

whole or 1n part using valuation techniques based on assumptions that are not supported by prices from

current market transactions or observable market data In these instances, the net fair value recorded 1n the

financial statements 1s the sum of three components

e the value given by application of a valuation model, based upon the Group's best estimate of the most
appropriate model inputs,

e any fair value adjustments to account for market features not included within the valuation model (for
example, counterparty credit spreads, market data uncertainty), and

* nception profit not recogmsed immediately in the income statement n accordance with accounting
policies

Day one profits

The amount that has yet to be recognised n the consolidated income statement relating to the difference
between the fair value at imitial recognition {the transaction price) and the amount that would have ansen
had valuation techmques been applied at initial recogmtion, less subsequent release, 1s as follows

2007

[JS5°000

Balance as at 29 December 2006 -
New trades deemed unobservable 143,771
Less Buybachks/defeasements (24,939)
Balance as at 28 December 2007 118,832
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27. HEDGE ACCOUNTING

At the mception of a hedging relatonship, the Group documents the relationship between the hedging
mstruments and the hedged items, 1ts nsk management objective and 1ts strategy for undertaking the hedge
The Group also monitors the position on an ongoing basis to ensure that the risk management objectives
conttnue to be achieved

Fair value hedge

To hedge the mterest rate nsk associated with a number of loans n the Group’s portfoho, interest rate
derivatives have been designated as part of a fair value hedge

Gains or losses arising from fair value hedges 2007
USS$ 000

Gamns/(losses)

- on hedging instruments (2,773)

- on the hedged items attributable to the hedged risk 2,679

Total (94)

The notienal amounts relating to financial instruments held to manage interest rate nisk as part of a fair
value hedge at 28 December 2007 amounted to US$154,719,000 The fair value of derivatives used as part
of a fair value hedge amounted to (US$2,773,000), as at 28 December 2007

Net investment hedges

The Group’s consolidated balance sheet 1s affected by exchange differences between the US dollar and all
the non-US dollar functional currencies of its branches Hedging 1s undertaken by financing with
borrowings 1n the same currency as the functional currency mvolved As at 28 December 2007, the Group
had borrowings equivalent to US$294 miihon hedging overseas net assets. the amount of meffectiveness
was immatenal Changes 1 US dollar value of the borrowings were taken to equity during the year,
matching gains and losses of overseas operations upon consolidation

28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial instruments are dealt with in both the trading book and non-trading book of the Group Both
trading book and non-trading book activities may expose the Group to vanous categones of nisk These
nisks are continually monitored through a comprehensive nsk management process  The proper execution
of this process leads to effective management of these nisks, helping to reduce the likelihood of earnings
volatihty over time

The Group systematically manage the following risk categories most relevant to its business

e  Market nsk The current or future threat to our earmings and capital base as a result of a change 1n the
value of an asset due to a movement 1n credit spreads, interest rates, foreign exchange rates or equity
prices,

e Credit nsh The potential for loss that can occur as a result of an individual, counterparty or issuer
being unable or unwiiling to honour its contractual obhgations to the Group.

e Liquidity nsk The potential mability to meet financial obligations, on or off-balance sheet, as they
come due, and

e Operational nsk The risk of loss resulting from the failure of people, internal processes and systems,
or from external events
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28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

The Grroup approves and monitors risk toletance levels (1e credit, market, hiquidity and operational risks)
through the Rish Policy and Oversight Comnuttee, chaired by a non-executnve dircctor - This comnmuttee
reviews reports from the Group s credit, asset and habihty, new product and operational risk commuttees
These committees identify and monitor risk limits based on recommendations and analysts provided by
independent nsh management groups who work with the business umits 1 establishing suitable nish
protiles for each of the business umits

The imual responsibility in the nsh management process rests with the individual business units 1n
managing the risks that anse on individual transactions or portfolios of similar transactions  Business units
manage these risks by adhering to established nisk policies and procedures

In addition to nisk management at the business umt level, the Group has developed corporate governance
policies and procedures that require corporate personnel, who are independent of business umits, to
participate 1n the nsk management process The primary independent groups responsible for the
maintenance of nsk policies and procedures and for establishing, controlling and monitoning risk limuts are
market nsk management, credit nsk management and liquidity nisk management To ensure a proper
system of checks and balances, these groups are independent of business umits and report to senior
management in the Group

(a) Market nisk

The Group uses conventional risk measures and internal mathematical and statistical measures, spectfically
Value at Risk (VaR), to manage 1its market risk positions both in and outside the trading portfolio on a
daily basis

The main elements of market nsk relevant to the Group are

e Interest Rate Risk the potential for loss due to adverse changes in interest rates Interest rate swap
agreements, futures and sccurities are common 1nterest rate nsk management tools,

e Currency Risk the potential for loss due to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates  Trading assets and
habilities include both cash instruments 1n, and dertvatives linked to, over 30 currencies including
Japanese Yen, Euro, Swiss Franc and Bntish Pound Currency forwards, swaps and options are
commonly used to manage currency risk associated with these instruments, and

e  Credit Spread Risk the potenttal for loss due to changes in credit sprecads  Credit spreads represent
the credit risk premiums required by market participants for a given credit quahity Credit default
swaps are common credit spread nsk management tools

The global nsk management group (‘GRM’) and other independent risk and control groups are
responsible for approving the products and markets in which the Group s business units and functions
will transact and take risk  Moreover, this group is responsible for identfying the nisks to which these
business units will be exposed 1n these approved products and markets GRM uses a vanety of quantita-
tive methods 1o assess the risk of the Group's positions and portfohos, in both trading and non- trading
books In particular, GRM quantifies the sensitivities of the Group's current portfolios to changes n
market variables  These sensittvities are then utihized in the context of historical data to estimate
earnings and loss distributions that the Group’s current portfolios would have incurred throughout the
historical period  From these distributions, GRM derives a number of useful risk statistics, including
VaR
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28.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

{a) ‘Market risk (continued)

The VaR disclosed in the accompanying table s an estimate ot the amount that the Gioup’s current
trading and non-trading porttfolios could lose with a specified degree of confidence, over a given time
tnterval - The aggregate VaR for the Group's trading and non-trading portfolies 1s less than the sum of the
VaR for individual nsk categories because movements in different nsk categones occur at different times
and, historically extreme movements have not occurred n all nisk categories simultancously  The
difterence between the sum of the VaR for individual risk categonies and the VaR calculated for all nisk
categories 15 shown 1n the following table and may be viewed as a measure ot the diversification within
the Group’s portfolios  Management believe that the tabulated rnisk measures provide broad guidance as
to the amount the Group could lose in future penods, and management work continually to improve the
Group’s measurement and the methodology of VaR  However, the calculation of VaR requires numerous
assumptions and thus VaR should not be viewed as a precise measure of nisk In addition, VaR 1s not
intended to capture worst case scenario losses

To calculate VaR, the Group aggregates sensiivities to market nisk factors and combines them with a
database of histonical market factor movements to simulate a series of profits and losses  The level of loss
that 1s exceeded 1n that sernies 5% of the time 1s vused as the estimate for the 95% confidence level VaR
The overall total VaR amounts are presented across major risk categones, which include exposure to
volatility nsk found in certain products, such as options

The table that foillows presents the Group’s average and year-end VaR for trading and non-trading
portfolios for 2007 and 2006 Additionally, high and low VaR for 2007 1s presented independently for
each nisk category and overall Because high and low VaR numbers for these nsk categories may have
occurred on different days, high and low numbers for diversification benefit would not be meaningful

95% Daily (scaled) VaR n Year End Daily High Low Year End
US$’000 2007 Average 5 2006

Group (Total) 24,155 16,429 30,280 6,784 8,667

of which

FX 6,122 4,357 10,368 1,221 3,504

Rates 10,151 10,759 25,040 2,901 4,770

Credit 21,530 13,087 21,530 8,583 8,782

GRM applies an enhanced historical simulation methodology, using the most recent four years of historical
observations, updated quarterly To this histortcal observation set we add a hypothetical observauon set
consisting of the opposite of the listorical movements Together, the historical data and the simulated
observations compnse the total observation set Since there are typically 209 wecks i a four-year
historical pertod, the total observation set for the weekly VaR typrcally consists of 418 observations

The aim of the c¢cnhanced histonical simuiation methodology s to increase the number of potential
obsenations and to reduce potential btases 1n the histonical data by including states of the world that
reverse any longer-term trends evident in benchmark time series over the historical observation period Al
scenario submissions are mapped 1o a benchmark time series in the total observation set
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28.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINULED)

(a) VMarhket rish (continued)

To calculate VaR, the profits or losses for each submission are calculated tor all dates in the total
obscrvation sct For a given scenaro and benchmark observation, if the shift in the benchmark time series
falls between two scenano shocks, then profit and loss ( P&L') 15 calculated using lincar interpolation
from the two scenano points that straddle the shift If the shift exceeds the range of the scenano shocks,
then hinear extrapolation 1s applied to the two extreme scenarto points closest to that shift

P&L results are calculated independently for each scenario and for each observation in the total
observation set The results for each draw are then summed across all scenanos The aggregate draws are
cach ranked by P&L

For 99% and 95% confidence level VaR, the VaR 15 detined as the 1% or 5% order statistic of the
aggrepate draws In the case of weckly observations, since there are typically 418 observations in the total
observation set, the 1% and 5% order statistics are the 5th-ranked and 2 1st- ranked observations

(b) Credit risk

The Group defines credit nsk as the potential for loss that can occur as a result of an mdividual,
counterparty or 1ssuer bemng unable or unwilling to honour tts contractual obligations to the Group The
credit nsk framework 1s the primary tool that 15 used to communicate firm wide credit imits and monitor
exposure by constraiming the magnitude and tenor of exposure to counterparty and issuer families
Additonally, there are country nsk limits that constrain total aggregate exposure across all counterparties
and 1ssuers (including sovereign entities) tor a given country within predefined tolerance levels

The Group’s credit department assesses the creditworthiness of existing and potential individual clients,
institutional counterparties and 1ssuers, and determines firm wide credit nsk levels within the credit nisk
framework among other tools This department reviews and momtors specific transactions as well as
portfolio and other credit nsk concentrations both within and across businesses They are also responsible
for the ongoing monitoring of credit quality and limit compliance and actively work with all of the Group's
business umts to manage and rmitigate credit nisk

The credit department uses a vanety of methodologies to set limits on exposure and potential loss resulting
from an individual, counterparty or 1ssuer failing to fulfil its contractual obligations The credit department
performs analyses n the context of industnal, regional, and global economic trends and incorporates
portfoho and concentration effects when determining tolerance levels Credit nisk linmts take nto
account measures of both current and potential exposure as well as potennal loss and are set and monitored
by broad nsk type, product type. and matunty Credit risk mitigation techniques include, where
appropriate, the nght to require mbal collateral or margin, the right to terminate transactions or to obtain
collateral should unfavourable events occur, the nght to call for collateral when certain exposure
thresholds are exceeded, the right to call for third party guarantees and the purchase of credut default
protection The credit department, in conjunction with the Group's semor management, conducts regular
portfolio reviews, monitors counterparty creditworthiness and evaluates potential transaction risks with a
view toward early problem identification and protection against unacceptable credit retated losses The
Grroup continues to invest additional resources to enhance 1ts methods and policies to assist in managing
the Group’s credit nsk and to address evolving regulatory requirements
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28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

Senitor members of the global credit and commitments commuttee chair yvarious comnutment commuttees
with membership across business, control and support units These commitices review and approve
commuiments, underwritings and syndication strategies related to debt, syndicated loans, equity, real estate,
leveraged finance and asset-backed finance

The primary credit risks of the Group relate to its fending and derivative activities

Lending activities

The Group’s commercial lending acuvities consist pnmanly of corporate and istitutional lending,
asset-backed finance, commercial real estate related activities, and leveraged finance In evaluating
certain potential commercial lending transactions, a risk adjusted return on capital model 1s used in
addition to other methodologies The Group typically provides corporate and institutional lending facilities
to chents for general corporate purposes, backup hquidity lines, bridge financings, and acquisition related
activities The Group often syndicate corporate and nstitutional loans through assignments and
' partictpations to unaffiliated third parties While these faciliies may be supported by credit enhancing
arrangements such as property liens or claims on operating assets, the Group generally expect repayment
through other sources including cash flow and/or recapitalisation

The Group’s credit department mitigates certain exposures in the corporate and institutional lending
portfolio by purchasing single name and basket credit default swaps as well as by evaluating and
selectively executing loan sales n the secondary markets

Asset-backed finance facilities are typically secured by financial assets such as mortgages, auto loans,
leases, credit card and other receivables  Chents often use these facihties for the orngination and purchase
of assets during a warchousing period leading up to secuntisaion  Credit assessment for these facilities
relies pnimanly on the amount, asset type, qualty, and liquidity of the supporting collateral, as the
collateral 1s the expected source of repayment Limts are monitored aganst potential loss upon default
taking these factors into consideration

The Group's other commercial real estate related activities consist of commercial mortgage onginations
and other exicnsions of credit connected to the financing of commercial properties or portfolios of
properties  The Group may reduce or ehrminate these exposures through third-party syndications or
secuntisations [he Group's assessment of creditworthiness and credit approval is highly dependent upon
the anticipated performance of the underlying property and/or associated cash flows

The Group ongnates residential mortgage loans through its subsidiary operations  The loans are
secured on residential property and advances are made subject to underwriting guidelines  The loans are
not rated and are originated wath the intention to securitise or sell through whole loan sales  The carrying
value of such loans amounted to USS5 5 billion. as at 28 December 2007
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28.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

{b) Credst risk (contenued)
Deriy ative activities

The Group enters into International Swaps and Denvatines Association, Inc master agreements or their
cquivalent ( master netting agreements’) with all of the Group’s major denvative counterparuies  Master
netting agreements provide protection in bankrupicy in certain circumstances and, 1n some cases, enable
receivables and payables with the same counterparty to be offset for rish management purposes
Agrecements are negotiated bilaterally and can require complex terms  While the Group makes every eftfort
to execute such agreements, 1t 15 possible that a counterparty may be unwilling to sign such an agreement
and, as a result, would subject the Group to additional nisk  The enforceability of master netung
agreements under bankruptcy laws 1n certain countries or 1n certmn 1ndustries 1s not free from doubt, and
receivables and payables with counterparties 1n these countries or industries are accordingly recorded on a
gross basis for risk assessment purposes

In addition, to reduce the nisk of loss, the Group requires collateral, principally cash and U S Government
and agency secunties, on certain derivative transactions  From an economuc standpoint, the Group
evaluates nsk exposures net of related collateral that meets specified standards The Group also attempts
to mitigate 1ts default nsk on denvatives whenever possible by entering into transactions with provisions
that enable us to terminate or reset the terms of our denvative contracts

The following 1s a summary of counterparty credit ratings, which are the credit rating agency equivalent
of internal credit ratings, for the Group’s financial assets as at 28 December 2007

- Group BB and

(all figures USS000) AAA to AA Ato BBB lower Not Rated* Total
Cash and balances at Central

Bank 938,683 - - - 938,683
Loans and advances to banks 8,208,473 1,413,697 - - 9,622,170
Loans and advances to

customers 1,178,440 5,431,386 8.544 415 14,809,907 29,964,148
Market and client recervables 5,746,589 4,885,605 23,008 1,221,068 11,876,270
Debt secunties and other

fixed income secunties 336,017 603,642 46,147 50,214 1,036,020
Trading assets 153,586,744 39,243,082 724,553 1,199.576 194,753,955
Toul financial assets 169,994946  S1.577412 9338123 17280765 248191246

Guarantees, undrawn

commutments and assets
pledged as collateral secunty 13,296,809 11,376,846 3,551,602 23905428 52,130.685

Maximum credit exposure 183291755  62.951.258 12889725  41186.193 300321931

*The majonty of the Group’s exposure to 'Not Rated’ counterparties relates to 1ts activiies in the residential
mortgages and private client secunties based lending arcas  Both of these activities are charactensed by the
provision of lending facihties which are secured on assets in the torm of residential property, cash or equity
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28.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(b) Credit risk (continued)
Collateral

I'he Group apphes the vanous instruments availlable to reduce the nsk on individual transactions, including
collateral i the lorm ot physical assets, netting ammangements and guarantees

The farr value of financial assets accepied as collateral that the Group 15 permitted to sell or repledge in the
absence of default 1s US89,833 million The fair value of financial assets accepted as collateral that have
been sold or repledged 1s US$9.824 nulhion

The Group has pledged US$9,800 million of 1ts financtal assets, as collateral for habtlities

The Group is obhiged to return equivalent securities These transactions are conducted under terms that are
usual and customary to standard securities financing activitics

Past due, but not impaired assets

The following table details credit exposures that are past due, but not imparired

(Al figures US$°000) Oto30 3lto60 611090 90 to 12010 180 days
days days days 120 days 180 days +
Loans and advances to customers 111,096 52,995 16,101 5,001 2,298 5,515
Market and client receivables 502,486 261,787 421,296 177317 631,905 -
Fair value of associated collateral 134,667 64,309 19.855 6,460 2.872 6,762

Impairment charges

The allowance account includes all impairment charges agamnst loans and receivables There were no
mpairment charges agamst any other class of financial asset The table below gives details of the
movement of the allowance account during the year

Total

Individual Collecuve impairment

impatrment  impairment charges

USS 000 US§’000 USS 000

At 29 December 2006 9,413 20,475 29,888
Amounts written off subsequently recovered (3,839) (4,530) (8,369)
Charge to income statement 11,466 101,179 112,645
Foreign currency translation - (4944) (4,944)
At 28 December 2007 17,040 112,180 129,220

Interest accrued on individually impaired assets during the period was USS7,137,000 There was no
collateral heid on the back of individual rmpaired loans
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28.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(c) Liqudity risk

The Group detines liquidity nisk as the potential inability to meet financial obligations, oun or oft-baiance
sheet, as they become due  Liqudity nisk relates to the abiliy of a company to repay short-term
borrowings with new borrowings or with assets that can be quickly comverted into cash while meeting
other obhgations and continuing to operate as a going concern  Liquidity nisk also includes both the
potential mability to raise funding with appropnate matunty, currency and interest rate characteristics and
the mability to hguidate assets 1n a timely manner The Group actively manages the Liquudity risks in its
businesses that can anse from asset-liabihity mismatches. credit sensiive funding, commitments or
contingencies

The primary hquidity objectives are to ensure hquidrty through market cycles and periods of financial
stress  The Group manages hiquidity nisk through holding a portfolio of cash and highly hquid assets which
can be readily reahsed for cash, by mamtaining commuitted credit tacilities, by appropnately matching the
hquichty profile of 1ts assets and liabilities and by maintaiming a funding profile which 1s well diversified
on a chent, segmental, geographical and duration basis

The Board sets the Group’s hquidity nsk tolerance, and mamtains a comprehensive hquidity policy,
investment policy and a formal contingency financing plan  The plan 1s comprehensive and includes
detailed actions which may be required depending on the nature and severity of the potential hquidity
stress event

Through 1ts Risk Policy and Oversight Commuttee, the Board ensures suntable systems and controls, risk
hmits, risk assessments, management responsibilities and it controls which are 1n turn momitored by the
Asset and Liability Committee  The Group has a comprehensive stress testing framework which is
consistent with market practice for liquidity nsk stress and scenario testing The stress tests incorporate
both market and Group specific stresses

Liquidity Risk Management (‘LRM") 1s responsible for measuring, momtoring and controlling the Group’s
liquidity nsks LRM establishes methodologies and specifications for measuring hquidity risks, performs
scenano analysis and liquidity stress testing, and sets and monitors hiquidity hmits  LRM works with the
Group’s business units to limit hiquidity risk exposures and reviews hiquidity nsks associated with new
products and new business strategies

Liguidity nsk 1s measured using the cash flow nusmatch methodology in conformity with the regulatory
hquidity requirements introduced in 2007 by the Financial Regulator  Under this methodology, modelled,
contractual and contingent cash inflows and outflows are reported n pre-determined time bands and
managed agamst limits as established n the Group’s Board approved hquidity policy Conservauve
modelling assumptions, reviewed by Financial Regulator, imply degrees of hypothetical stress to ensure
that the Group will be able to continue to operate as a going concern under such stress conditions
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28.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINULED)

(¢) Ligudity risk (continued)

I'he tollowing table shows the hability matunity profile of the Group

(All figures USS'000) Due within 1 Due between Due after 5
On demand year land 5 years years
NON-TRADING LIABILITIES
Deposits by banks 1,001,267 - - -
Customers accounts 3,834,016 22,848,483 56,894 167,127
Non-recourse financing - - - 1,853,456
Market and chent payables 8,074.042 - - -
Subordinated debt - - - 2,760,000

OFF-BALANCE SHEET
Guarantees, undrawn commitments and
assets pledged as collateral security 3,601,813 42,187,748 4254927 2,086,197

TRADING LIABILITIES*
Trading habilities 199,856,302 - - -

*Trading habihties pnimaniy consist of derivative habihties  The Group has recorded all derivative
habihities in the ‘on demand’ category to retlect the common market practice of terminating derivative
contracts at fair value upon a chent's request The Group has provided the present value rather than
contractual undiscounted cash flows for these mstruments It should be noted however, that 1t 1s remote
that 1in any given period all of the derivatives will unwind in the short term, and although 1t 1s current
market practice to terminate contracts upon a client's request, the Group 1s generally not contractually
obligated to do so The Group manages hquidity for these instruments by actively unwinding asset
positions to ensure appropnately balanced cash flows  All other figures are undiscounted and show
contractual maturities

{(d) Operational risk

The Group defines operational nisk as the nisk of loss resulting from the fallure of people, internal
processes and systems, or from external events Operational risk can anse from many sources including
theft and fraud, improper business practices, claims from clients, and from events which disrupt business

The pnmary responsibility for managing operational nsk on a day-to-day basis liecs with the Group's
businesses and support functions Each business and support group has established processes, systems and
controls to address operational nsks within their umt  These include the use of technology to automate
processes and ey controls, the provision and testing of business continuity plans to protect against major
disruptions, the establishment of control committees to oversee the effectiveness of the control
environment, and the training, superviston and development of staff’
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28.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(d) Operational rish (continued)

Operational Risk Management ((ORM™) 15 an independent nisk management function responsible for
providing a fiamework and infrastructure to support the effective management and oversight of the irm’s
exposure to operational sk The framework includes

. Identification. assessment and momtoring of risks - ORM works closely with business management.
GRM. and other independent control functions to idenufy assess and monitor the cntical operational
risks impacting the business,

. Loss analysis - ORM systematically captures, analyses, and reports operational risk loss data based
on a structured classification of sk Risk categories used tor analysis of both tirm and industry loss
data mclude business disruption, business practices, client selection and exposure, chent suntability
and servicing, employment practices, key person, technology., theft and fraud, transaction execution,
and valuation and reporting, and

. Reporting to governance committees - ORM presents analysis of all elements of the operational risk
framework to key governance, risk, and control commuttees both regionaily and globally

29. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

It 1s the Group’s policy to mantain a strong capital base to support the development of its business and to
meet regulatory capital requirements at all times  The Group 1s headquartered in Ireland and directly
regulated and subject to the capttal requirements of the Financial Regulator The Group 1s required to meet
munimum regulatory capital requirements under European Union (‘EU’) banking law as implemented n
Iretand and supervised by the Financial Regulator At 28 December 2007, the Group’s capital ratio was
above the mimmurm requirement at 11 59% (2006 11 06%) and 1ts financial resources were US510,236
million (2006 US$6,686 mullion), exceeding the mimimum requirement by US$3,365 mullion (2006
US$1,840 million)

Capital Type 2007 USS M 2006 USS M
Tier One 7.404 6,625
Trer Two 2,532 61
Tier Three 300 -

Tier One capital 15 the Group's core capital and includes 1ts equity capital, share presmum and retained
earmings Tier Two and Tier Three capital consists of the Group’s subordinated debt which 1t has received
from 1ts ultimate parent Mernill Lynch & Co, Inc  In addiion, Tier Three caputal can include the Group’s
unaudited trading book profits Tier Two capital has a maturity profile of no less than five years, Tier
Three a matunty profile of no less than two years

The Group's policy 15 to hold capstal 1n excess of its regulatory capital requirements  Comphance with this
policy 1s monttored daily and reported to approprate govermnance forums monthly and quarterty, and to the
Financial Regulator quarterly

The Basel Commuttee on Banking Supervision has published a framework for calculating minimum capital

requirements which 1s known as Basel IT It replaces the 1988 Basel Capital Accord Basel Hs structured
around three “pillars’ minimum capital requirements, SUPEN 1501y review process and market discipline
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29, CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

With respect o the first pillar, mummimum capital requirements, Basel [l provides three approaches of
increasing sophistication for the calculation ol credit nisk regulatory capetal, the Standardised Approach
which requues firms to use external credit ratings to determine the risk weightings apphed to rated
counterparties, the loundation Internal Ratings Based Approach ( FIRB') which determines rnisk
welghtings on the basis of an internal assessment of the probability that a counterparty will default, but
uses standard supervisory parameters for loss given default, and Advanced Intermal Ratings Based
Approach ( AIRB") which allows banks to use their own internal assessment not only of the counterpartics
probability of default but also of the loss given detault

From 1 January 2008 the Group has implemented the FIRB Approach for the majonity of its business untits
A rollout plan has been developed to extend coverage ot this approach over the next three vears leaving a
small residue of exposures on the standardised approach

30. NON-TRADING BOOK ACTIVITIES

Interest rate sensitivity gap analysis - Group

Part of the Group’s return on financial instruments 1s obtained from controlled mismatching of the dates on
which interest receivable on assets and interest payable on labsities are next reset to market rates or, 1f

earher, the dates on which the instruments mature
mismatches on the Group’s non-trading book as at 28 December 2007

[he table below summanses these repricing

by reference to the earlier of the next contractual interest rate repricing date and the maturity date

Items are allocated to time bands

Not more Not Not more Notmore  More than Non- Total
than three more than than than five  five years interest
months 51X months onc year years bearing
USS M USS M USS M LSS M USS M USS M USS M

Assets
Cash and balances at central 939 i i . ) ) 919
banks
Loans and advances to banks 9.488 61 - 73 - - 9,622
Loans and advances to
customers 2.068 6092 5548 5354 10,902 - 29964
Market and client receivables 11,876 - - - - - 11,876
Other assets 4.008 - - - - 619 4.627
Total assets 28 379 6,153 5548 5427 10,902 619 57028
Liabilities
Deposits by banks 1001 - - - - - 1 001
( ustomer Accounts 24 383 1,738 542 57 167 20 26,907
Non-recourse finance - - - 1.853 - - 1.853
Market and client payables 8074 - - - - - 8.074
Other habihties 2,867 - - - - 834 3.701
Subordinated debt - - - - 2,760 - 2760
Shareholders™ tunds - - - - - 8 666 8 666
Total Liabihties 36,325 1 738 542 1910 2927 9,520 52,962
Interest rate sensitivity gap (7,946) 4415 5006 3517 7975  (8.901) 4 066
Cumulative Gap (7 946) {3531 1 475 4992 12967 1.066
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30. NOMN-TRADING BOOK ACTIVITIES (CONTINUED)

The primary non-trading book activiies of the Group include lending and mvestment activity

Currency risk disclosures

Since the Group prepares consohidated tinancial statements mn US Dollars, the consohdated balance sheet
15 affected by the structural currency exposures ansing on movements in exchange rates between the US
Dollar and the operating currencies of the overseas entittes  The currency exposure of the Group’s net
asscts 1 non-functional currency operations were

2007 2006

USS 000 USS’ 000

Swiss Franc 193 401 418,895
Sterhing 139,844 204,660
Euro 42,669 156
Bahraim Dinar 1,438 1,140
677,352 624,857

Transactional currency eyposures are non-structural currency exposures, which anse on the monetary
assets and habilities of the Group that are not denominated n the base currency of the operating unit
mvolved

31. SHARE BASED PAYMENTS

To align the interests of employees with those of shareholders, the Group's ulumate parent, Memnll Lynch
& Co , Inc, sponsors several employee compensation plans that provide ehigible employees with shares or
options to purchase shares The total pre-tax compensation cost recognised 1n the income statement for
share based compensation plans for 2007 was US$122 million (2006 US3121 mullion)

Long Term Incentive Compensation Plans (‘LTIC Plans’), Employee Stock Compensation Plan
(‘ESCP’) and Equity Capital Accumulation Plan (*ECAP’)

LTIC Plans, ESCP and ECAP provide for grants of equity and equity related instruments to certain
employees LTIC Plans consist of a shareholder approved plan used for grants to executive officers, and
the long term incentive compensation plan for managers and producers, a broad-based ptan which was
approved by the Board, but has not been shareholder approved LTIC Plans provide for the 1ssuance of
restricted shares, restncted umits and non-qualified stock options, as well as incentive stock options,
performance shares, performance units performance options, and other secunties of Mermll Lynch ESCP,
a broad-based plan approved by shareholders in 2003, provides for the 1ssuance of restricted shares,
restricted umts and non-quahfied stock options LCAP, a shareholder-approved plan, provides for the
issuance of restricted shares, as well as performance shares  All plans under LTIC Plans, ESCP and ECAP
may be sausfied using erther treasury or newly 1ssued shares

Restricted shares and restricted units

Restricted shares are shares of Memll Lynch & Co, Inc common stock carrying voting and dividend
nghts A restricted unit 1s deemed equnvalent in fair market value to one share of common stock
Substantially all awards are settled in shares of common stock Reciprents of restricted unit awards receve
cash payments equivalent 1o dividends  Under these plans, such shares and units are restricted from sale,
transfer or assignment until the end of the restnicied period
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31.  SHARE BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

Restricted shares and restricted umits (continued)

Such shares and units are subject to forferture duning the vesting period for grants under LTIC Plans or the
restricted perod for grants under ECAP - Restricted share and umit grants made prior to 2003 generally
chtf vestin three years  Restricted share and unit grants made 1in 2003 through 2005 generally chif vest in
four years Restricted share and unit grants made from 20006, generally step vest in tour years From 2006,
parttcipation units were granted from the LTIC Plans under Memll Lynch’s managing partners incentive
program  The awards granted under this program are fully at risk, and the potenual payout will vary
depending on Memll Lynch’s financial performance against pre-determined returmn on average common
stockholders” equity targets  One-third of the participation umits will convert into restricted shares on each
of 31 January 2007, 31 January 2008 and 31 January 2009, subject to the saustaction of mimmum ROL
targets determined for the most recently completed fiscal year  Participation umits will cease 1o be
outstanding timmedately following conversion It the minimum target 1s not met, the participation units
will expire without being converted

The activity for restricted shares and umits under these plans during 2007 and 2006 1s as follows

Restricted shares Restricted units

Qutstanding, beginning of 2006 740,501 607,529
Granted - 2006 249,360 240,128
Paid, forfeited or released from contingencies (310,530) (182.390)
Outstanding, end of 2006 679,331 665,267
Granted — 2007 343953 371.196
Paud, forfeited or released from contingencies 34226 50,822
Qutstanding, end of 2007 1,057,510 1,087,285

Non-qualified stock options

Non-quahtied stock options granted under LTIC Plans in 1996 through 2000 generally became exercisable
over five years, options granted in 2001 and 2002 became exercisable after approximately six months
Options made after 2002 generally become exercisable over four years The exercise price of these grants
1s equal to 100% of the fair market value (as defined in LTIC Plans) of a share of Merrill Lynch & Co , Inc
common stock on the date of grant Oplions expire ten years after their grant date

The activity for non-qualified stock options under LTIC Plans for 2007 and 2006 1s as follows
Weighted average

Options Waeighted average share price at
outstanding exercise price date of exercise
Outstanding, beginning ot 2006 2,773 478 508
Granted — 2006 32,549 715
Exercised {588,099) 41 2 78 34
Forfeited (40.436) 429
Outstanding, end of 2006 2,177,492 53.7
Granted - 2007 4,450 95 8
Exercised (320,725) 46 6 90 93
Forfetted - (91,474) 49 4 .
Outstanding, end of 2007 1,769,743 54.7

Exercisable, end of 2007 1.679,189 533
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31. SHARE BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

At 28 December 2007, the weighted-average remaiming contractual terms of options outstanding and
exercisable were 3 3 years and 3 2 years, respectively  The weighted-average fair value of options granted
1 2007 and 2006 was USS8 18 and USS14 16 per option, respectively  The table below summarises the
range of exercise prnices and the weighted average remarmming contractual life for all options outstanding at
28 December 2007

Range of exercise 2007 Number Weighted average 2006 Number Weighted average

prices remaining remaining
contractual life - contractual life -
2007 2006
$20 00-330 00 - - 38,278 008
$30 00-540 00 447,098 208 542,500 301
$40 00-$50 00 239,271 338 287,342 4 58
§50 00-560 00 564,005 408 691,794 508
$60 00-570 00 7,216 259 7,216 359
$70 00-580 00 507,703 307 610,362 4 07
$80 00-890 00 - - - -
$90 00-5100 00 4,450 4 07 - -

The fair value of each option award 1s estimated on the date of grant based on a Black-Scholes option

pricing model using the following weighted-average assumptions

e  The nsk-free rate for peniods within the contractual life of the option 1s based on the US Treasury
yield curve i effect at the tme of grant,

e The expected life of options granted 1s equal to the contractual hfe of the options adjusted based on
management's best estmate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and
behavioural considerations, and

e Expected volatlities are based on historical volatility of Mernll Lynch & Ceo, Inc common stock The
expected dividend 1s based on the current dividend rate at the time of grant

2007 2006
Risk free interest rate 4 719% 4 40%
Expected hife 4 3 years 4 5 years
Expected volatility 21 39% 28 8%
Expected dividend yield 1 49% 137%

32. LEASE COMMITMENTS

Duning the year, the Group s commtted to pay US$27,043.000 (2006 USS14,031,000) mm respect to
operating leases as follows

2007 2006
USS'000 Uss$ 000
Matunty of lease Land and Land and
Building Other Building Other
1 year 10 5 years 17,816 2,819 7,608 2.059
Over 5 years 6,408 - 4,364 .
24,224 2,819 11,972 2,059
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33, PARFNT COMPANY AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Ihe tmmediate parent company 1s Mernitl Lynch Group Holdimgs Limited. a company incorporated in
Ireland 1he financial statements of Mermll Lynch Group Holdings Limited are avanlable at the Companies
Registration Otfice, Parnell House, 14 Pamnell Square, Dubhin 1

I'he uitimoate parent company s Memll Lynch & Co ., Inc, a company incorporated in the State of
Delaware, USA  Copies of the group financial statements of Mernll Lynch & Co , Inc are available from
the Investor Relations website at www ar ml com or by contacting the Corporate Secretary by mail at 222
Broadway, [7th Floor, New York, NY 10038, USA or by email at corporate_secretary@ml com

The Group has availed itselt of an exemption, contained in FRS 8 Related Party Disclosures’, from
detathng transactions and balances with group compames There were no related party transactions other
than those with affilated companies covered by this exemption

34. SUBSIDIARY CONMPANIES

The principal subsidianes (held indirectly unless marked *) in the Group are as follows

Company Principal Activity Country of Proportion Value of
Incorporation  of Ordinary Shareholding
shares held US$’000

Mernll Lynch Bank (Suisse) SA*  Private chient banking  Switzerland 100% 21,561
Majestic Acquisihons* Mortgage lending United Kingdom 100% 160,972
Mortgages Plc Mortgage lending United Kingdom 100% -
Mortgages No | Plc Mortgage lending United Kingdom 0% -
Mortgages No 6 Plc Securitisation vehicle  United Kingdom 0% -
Mortgages No 7 Plc Secuntisation vehicle  Unmited Kingdom 0% -
Wave Lending Limited* Mortgage lending United Kingdom 100% 48,168
Taurus No 2 CMBS Sri Secunitisation vehicle  ltaly 0% -
Newgate Funding Plc Sccurnitisation vehicle  Umited Kingdom 0% -
mjf]“ Lynch Financial Services Financial services Ireland 100% 25,471

256,172

Mortgages No 6 Plc, Mortgages No 7 Plc, Newgate Funding Plc and Taurus No 2 CMBS Srl are not
owned by the Group but their results are consohidated, as they meet the defimition of legal subsidianes for
these accounts under FRS 2 *Accounting for Substdiary Undertakings’, the Companies Acts, 1963 to 2006
and the European Communities (Credit Institutions  Accounts) Regulations, 1992

35. CASH FLOW STATEMENT

The Group 15 exempt from the requirement to prepare a cash flow statement under FRSt  Cash Flow
Statements’, as a consohdated cash tlow statement is included n the publicly available consohdated
financial statements of the ultimate parent company, Mernll Lynch & Co , Inc




MERRILL LYNCH INTERNATIONAL BANK LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 28 DECEMBER 2007

36. SEGMENTAL REPORTING

The Groups activities are dernved trom Global Markets and [nvestment Banking and Global Wealth
Management  The Groups ultimate parent, Mermll Lynch & Co Inc , manages the ¢ntire groups businesses
along these segments

From a Group perspective however, 1t 1s not possible to allocate trading revenues or net assets to any

particular geographical source as one trade may mvolve parties situated n a number ot different
geographical areas

37. EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

Average number of persons employed 2007 2006
Sales and trading 610 497
Sales and trading support 228 214
Other support services 1,849 1,108

2,687 1,819

The above averages include Group staff in both Ireland and 1ts overseas operations
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OFFICES OF MERRILL LYNCH INTERNATIONAL BANK LIMITED
HEAD OFFICE, BRANCHES AND SUBSIDIARIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 28 DECEMBER 2007

Ireland

Freasury Building

Lower Grand Canal Street
Dublin 2

el 3531 243 83500
Germany

Mamn Tower

Neue Mainzer Strasse 52
trankfurt 60311

Tel 49 69 5899 5000

Italy

Via Turati, 9
20121 Milan

Tel 3902 655 301

Bahrain

Bahrain Middle East Bank Building
PO Box 10399

Diplomatic Area
Manama

tel 973 17 530 260
Singapore

2 Raffles Link
Marina Bayfront

Singapore 039392

Tel 656331 388

United Kingdom

Memll Lynch Financial Centre
2 King Edward Street
[ ondon, EC1A THQ

Tel 44 207628 1000

Crown House
Manchester Road
Wilmslow

Cheshire

SK9 1AX

Tel 44 1625 546000
Netherlands

Rembrandt Tower, 27" Floor
Amstelplemn 1

1096 HA Amsterdam

Or Postbus 95232

1090 HE Amsterdam

Tel 31 205925 777

Spain

Edificio Torre Picasso, 407 Floor
Plaza Pable Ruiz Picasso, |
28020 Madnd

Tel 34 91 5t4 3000

Switzerland

13 Route de Florissant
PO Box 3070
CH-1211 Geneva 3

Tet 41 22703 1717
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